
 
  

TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

WORK SESSION MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 3, 2017 – 4:30 P.M. 

DOWNSTAIRS MEETING ROOM/COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 

 
A.  Welcome - Mayor Lowe 

 

B.  Roll Call – Cecile Rosenbaum, Town Clerk 

 

C. Consideration for proposed budget for FY 2017/2018 – Greg Kelly, Town Manager 

 

D.  New Business 

 

1. Update on picnic shelter proposed for Fairview (Regular Agenda Item F-1) – Deb 

Icenhour, Town Attorney 
 

2. Consideration of E. B. Stanley Middle School’s TSA to build a rain collection system 

at Fairview – Sarita Moore, Director of Wastewater Operations and Rick Statzer, 

Building Inspector 
 

3. Consideration of amendment of bylaws for Tourism Advisory Committee – Deb 

Icenhour, Town Attorney  
 

E. Council Member Updates / Reports 

 

1. Update on partnership with Virginia Highlands Community College – Bob Howard, 

Council Member 

 

2. Update on Appalachian Power project involving the Virginia Highlands Airport – 

Cathy Lowe, Mayor 

 

3. Discussion relative to letter received from Delegate Delores L. McQuinn - Cindy 

Patterson, Councilmember  

 

 

 

 

 



Work Session Agenda 

April 3, 2017 

Page Two 

 

 

F. Reports/Updates from Town Manager, Assistant Town Manager and Town Attorney 

 

1. Consideration of Letter of Agreement between Abingdon Main Street and Virginia 

Main Street – Greg Kelly, Town Manager  

 

2. Update on RFP for ground penetrating radar at The Meadows – Greg Kelly, Town 

Manager 
 

3. Update on air quality review for the Exit 17 area – Greg Kelly, Town Manager 

 

4. Update on any town ordinances – Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney  

 

 Business License 

 HomeStay 

 Sign  

 Tourism Zone 

 Fire Prevention/Protection 

 Fire Lane Violations 

 

5. Reports on the following town owned properties – Cecile Rosenbaum, Assistant 

Town Manager 

 

 Breckenridge Cabin – nothing to report 

 Fields Penn – nothing to report 

 The Meadows House – nothing to report  

 Retirement (Muster Grounds) – nothing to report 

 

6. Report on activities of Community Development Coordinator – Tonya Triplett, 

Coordinator 

 

G. Staff Reports / Updates 

 

1. Update on Urban Pathway Project – John Dew, Dir. of Construction/Public Services 

 

2. Update on VDOT upkeep of exit ramps - John Dew, Dir. of Construction/Public 

Services 
 

3. Update on split rail fence at Exit 17 - John Dew, Dir. of Construction/Public 

Services 
 

 



Work Session Agenda 

April 3, 2017 

Page Three 

 

H. Review of Regular Agenda for April 3, 2017 Regular Agenda  

 

I. Recess to Regular Council meeting in Council Chambers 

 

 







TOURISM ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

BYLAWS 

 

ARTICLE I – NAME 

The Tourism Advisory Committee of Abingdon (TAC or Advisory Committee) is an advisory 

body created by the Abingdon Town Council in 1991. 

ARTICLE II – AUTHORITY  

Section 1 

The TAC operates under the authority delegated to municipalities under Title 15.2, Chapter 22, 

Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. 

Section 1.2 

The authority for the TAC was established on November 4, 1991 by a motion of the Abingdon 

Town Council.   

ARTICLE III – PURPOSE AND DUTIES 

Section 1 – Duties and General Responsibilities 

The Abingdon Town Council’s creation of a Tourism Advisory Committee is to pursue the 

following purposes and duties: 

1. Encourage and support the goals and objectives of the town. 

2. Provide an official channel of input on tourism issues from attractions and businesses to 

the office of tourism, town management and the town council. 

3. Provide resources and support to the director of tourism by sharing information and 

experiences on tourism issues. 

4. Cultivate cooperative efforts in advertising, publicity, research and other aspects of the 

promotion of tourism. 

5. Coordinate tourism development with other agencies in order to avoid duplication of 

efforts. 

Section 2 – Financial Duties and Responsibilities 

a) The tourism advisory committee shall have no authority to enter into any contract or 

incur any obligation binding the town. 

b) The committee shall assist the director of tourism in development and preparation of an 

annual budget for the division to be submitted to the town manager and subsequently to 

the town council, at the time designated by the town manager. 



Section 3 – Planning Duties and Responsibilities 

The tourism advisory committee shall investigate and determine the needs and interests of the 

community for tourism programs and facilities and recommend a tourism program to meet those 

needs. 

ARTICLE IV – LOCAL COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 

Section 1 – Composition, salaries and expenses 

The TAC shall be composed of up to fifteen (15) members. The members shall receive no salary, 

or other compensation for their services. Ex officio members are afforded the same rights as 

other members, including debate, making formal motions and voting. REMOVE 

1) One representative of the hotel-motel industry 

2) One representative of the bed and breakfast industry 

3) One representative of the attractions industry 

4) One representative of the restaurant industry 

5) One representative from the historic sites or museum industry 

6) One representative from the retail or downtown merchant industry 

7) One representative from the arts and culture industry 

8) One representative from Heartwood  REMOVE 

9) One representative from Virginia Higher Education Center CHANGE – higher education 

field 

10) At large 

11) At large 

12) At large 

Section 2 – Ex officio members 

1) Town Council or representative 

2) Chamber of Commerce or representative 

3) Abingdon Main Street or representative 

4) Washington County Board of Supervisors or representative - ADD 

Section 3 – Appointment and terms of members and vacancies 

a) The members of the tourism advisory committee shall be appointed by the Abingdon 

Town Council.  The Town Council shall seek out and appoint persons with a high degree 

of interest, capacity and objectivity. 

b) The terms of office for the members of the tourism advisory committee shall be for three 

years or until their successors are appointed and qualified; the term of three members 

shall expire annually thereafter. Members are eligible to serve two consecutive three year 

terms and can be reappointed to the committee by the Abingdon Town Council. 



c) Vacancies in such committee occurring otherwise than by expiration of the term shall be 

filled by the council for the remainder of the unexpired term. New members filling an un-

expired term shall be eligible for two full three year terms, without interruption. 

ARTICLE V – OFFICERS AND ELECTIONS 

The tourism advisory committee shall elect a Chairman for the committee annually in July. The 

term of the Chairman shall be one year. 

The following officers of the tourism advisory committee shall be elected by the membership of 

the TAC from among the membership of the TAC: (1) Vice Chair; and (2) Secretary whose 

duties shall reflect common usages of Roberts Rules of Order. 

Elections of officers shall be held annually at the July meeting of the TAC. Terms of each office 

shall be one year. Nominations will be made from the floor. 

ARTICLE VI – COMMITTEES 

The Chair may from time to time, with the consent of the TAC, recommend the establishment of 

special committees, including ad hoc committees, to study subjects of particular concern to the 

TAC and report their findings and recommendations to the TAC. Special Committee chairs must 

be appointed from among the members of the TAC. Special Committees shall consist of no 

fewer than two (2) TAC members and may include non-TAC members. All special committees 

shall take minutes to be presented at the next scheduled TAC meeting for all members to review.  

ARTICLE VII – MEETINGS OF THE ADVISORY BOARD 

Section 1 – Time and Place 

Regular monthly meetings of the tourism advisory committee shall be held at 3:00 p.m. on the 1st 

Tuesday of the month at a Town-owned location determined by the Chair or another suitable 

public meeting space as determined by a majority vote of the TAC. Special meeting of the TAC 

may be called by the TAC Chair or 50% of TAC members provided that written or electronic 

notice to all members has been given five days in advance.  Meetings of special committees will 

be scheduled and convened at the discretion of the appropriate committee chair. 

All meetings of the tourism advisory committee shall be open to the public and records of the 

TAC shall be a public record as required by the Virginia Freedom of Information Act.  The 

committee may meet in closed session only for the purposes stated in that Act.  

Section 2 – Quorum 

A majority of all members shall constitute a quorum.  

 



Section 3 – Voting 

In making any recommendation, adopting any plan, or approving any proposal, or position, 

action shall be taken by a majority vote of all members present.  All votes of the TAC shall be 

made a matter of public record and shall be reflected in the minutes. 

Section 4 – Minutes 

Minutes of all regular or special sessions of the TAC shall be recorded and maintained in the 

Department of Tourism as a permanent record of TAC activities. 

Section 5 – Attendance at Meetings 

Any member of the TAC who shall fail to attend three (3) consecutive meetings may be 

considered to have resigned. The Chair shall, at his or her discretion, declare that a vacancy 

exists and proceed to have it filled by appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term in the 

manner provided for in Article IV, Section 3 of these Bylaws. 

ARTICLE VIII – AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 

Any proposed amendment to these Bylaws shall be presented in writing to the members of the 

TAC at a regularly scheduled meeting and shall not be subject to a vote until the next regularly 

scheduled TAC meeting. Approval by a majority of the members of the TAC shall be required to 

recommend any proposed amendment of the Bylaws to the Town Council. Modifications to the 

bylaws must be reviewed and approved by the Town Council.  The Town Council has sole 

authority to approve modifications to the Tourism Advisory Committee bylaws. 

ARTICLE IX – SEVERABILITY 

In the event any provision or provisions of these Bylaws shall be determined to be invalid, void 

or unenforceable, such determination shall not render invalid, void or unenforceable any other 

provision here of the adopted Bylaws. 

ARTICLE XI – EFFECTIVE DATE 

These Bylaws become effective when adopted by the Town Council of Abingdon. 

Approved this _____ day of ______________, 20___. 

 

 

 





1 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT  
by and between 

THE TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 
and 

ABINGDON MAIN STREET, INC. 
 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into and executed by the Town of 

Abingdon, a Municipal Corporation organized pursuant to the Code of Virginia, 
1950, as amended  (hereinafter referred to as "Town") and Abingdon Main 

Street, Inc., a non-stock Corporation organized pursuant to the provisions of 
Chapter 10 of Title 13.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended (hereinafter 

referred to as  "AMS").  This Agreement is made in accordance with the formal 
action taken by the Abingdon Town Council at its regular meeting on April 3, 

2017 and in the interest of developing and supporting the revitalization of the 

historic business district of Abingdon, Virginia.  This Memorandum of 
Agreement is an extension and modification of the original Memorandum of 

Agreement dated May 5, 2008 between the town of Abingdon and Abingdon 
Main Street.  Such revitalization is sought to be accomplished through the 

establishment of AMS, an affiliate of the statewide program, Virginia Main 
Street Communities.   

 
WHEREAS, it is hereby understood and agreed that the Town, as 

represented by  its governing Council and Town Manager,  and AMS, 
represented by its designated officer,  have agreed to certain provisions to be 

honored between the parties. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, 
the parties agree as follows:  

 

1. The Town hereby agrees to support the aforementioned program by 
continuing to be a financial partner, thereby extending financial support 

for and during a two (2) year period, beginning July 1, 2017 and 
extending to no later than June 30, 2019, subject to favorable 

evaluation, desirable outcome of program objectives, and at the 
discretion of the Town.  

  
2. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that the Town's annual 

financial support shall be awarded through its fiscal budget and only if 
AMS secures additional financial support, in advance,  from sources 

outside the government of the Town of Abingdon in an amount which 
equals or exceeds that which the Town agrees to fund herein.  

  



2 

 

3. The parties to this Agreement understand that the matching obligation 

described herein is in effect and applicable separately for each of the 
fiscal years, '2017 – '2019, and the individual budgets applicable 

thereto. 
 

4. The Town agrees to provide office space (rent-free), and the use of 
furnishings, computer and copy equipment for the Executive Director of 

AMS for one (1) year, beginning July 1, 2017.  The specific  area to be 
assigned shall be at the sole discretion of the Town Manager or his 

designee,  and shall be facilitated through the sharing of  that which 
exists or is available within the offices and facilities of the Abingdon 

Tourism Department.  The Town further acknowledges that the 
aforementioned office space rent-free arrangement shall be open to 

consideration for a possible one (1)-year extension, subject to the 
favorable evaluation of the program and availability of adequate and 

appropriate space,  at the sole discretion of the Town Manager or his 

designee. 
 

5. The Town further agrees to support and facilitate the operations of AMS  
by providing assistance to its Executive Director through allowing  use 

of its part-time employees within the Tourism Department, subject to 
the availability of  part-time employees  having completed prior 

departmental assignments and/or responsibilities. 
 

6.  Abingdon Main Street agrees to provide the services of processing, 
documenting and distributing the salary and benefits of its Executive 

Director of AMS and any of its employee that it may hire.  The town shall 
in no way be responsible to facilitate any of these services during the 

course of this agreement. through the Town's office network, support 
staff and systems.    

 

7. In consideration of Town's support, AMS hereby agrees to the following 
terms: 

 To provide the town with its projected budget on an annual basis 
to be delivered to the Office of the Town Manager no later than 

March 1st of each year thereby allowing for consideration and 
evaluation and in regard to the town’s fiscal budget projection, 

fiscal year observed July 1 through June 30 of the following 
year; 

 To hold regular business hours within the town of Abingdon and 
to meet regularly with existing and future downtown business 

owners to understand their needs and to provide them with what 
assistance and services AMS has to offer them; 



3 

 

 To hold regular meetings known as “Main Street After 5 pm” with 

existing and future business owners and to provide the town 
manager and the Community Development Director for the town 

of Abingdon with the dates and locations of said meetings; 
 To attend all regular Town Council meetings and Tourism 

Advisory Committee meetings for the town of Abingdon; 
 To provide Town Council a written monthly report on fundraising 

efforts and ongoing and completed projects of AMS, said report 
being due by the last week of the month; 

 To present a quarterly report in person to the Abingdon Town 
Council and its citizens in attendance at a regularly convened 

Council meeting; 
 To meet monthly with the Town Manager and discuss successes, 

proposals, and challenges; 
 To work in unison with the town’s Community Development 

Coordinator on downtown revitalization efforts and community 

events. 
 To allow the Town Manager or his designee the opportunity any 

AMS board meetings or other meetings that the director may 
have throughout the year. 

 
 

8. AMS hereby agrees to be available for presentation of annual financial 
and activity reports to Council as deemed desirable by the Town 

Manager. 
 

This agreement may be revised by an amendment in writing adopted by  
the Town Council and Board of Directors of Abingdon Main Street, Inc. 

 
The parties to this Agreement hereby acknowledge that Abingdon Main  

Street, Inc. and the Town of Abingdon are separate entities.  The corporate 

employee(s) of  Abingdon Main Street, Inc. work at the full pleasure of its 
Board of Directors.  Accordingly, AMS acknowledges that it is responsible for 

procuring and maintaining separate insurance coverage for its employee(s) 
and any/all property owned by its corporate entity.   

 
 

 
 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this agreement. 
 

 



4 

 

By_______________________________  ________________ 

  Town Manager             Date 
       Town of Abingdon 

 
 

By_______________________________  ________________ 
               President, AMS              Date 

  
              

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, to wit: 

The foregoing Memorandum of Agreement was acknowledged before me 
this the ___ day of ___________, 2017 by Gregory Kelly, Town Manager for 

the Town of Abingdon, Virginia. 
 

Notary Public _____________________ 

 
My commission expires:  _________________________ 

 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, to wit: 

The foregoing Memorandum of Agreement was acknowledged before me 
this the ___ day of _______________, 2017, by __________, President for 

Abingdon Main Street, Inc. 
 

Notary Public _____________________ 
 

My commission expires:  _________________________ 



 
 

 TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 3, 2017 – 7:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

  
 Welcome to the Town of Abingdon, Virginia Regular Council Meeting.  We appreciate your interest and we 

encourage public participation in our meeting.  Your comments are important to our decision making process. 

Please note that there will be two (2) opportunities during the meeting for you to address the Council members.  

The first opportunity will come when the Mayor declares a public hearing open for comment.  The second 

opportunity to address the council will come near the end of the Agenda when the Mayor will inquire if anyone 

wishes to speak to Council members regarding matters not listed on the Agenda.  We do request that anyone 

addressing the Council, approach the podium, identify your first and last name and give your complete mailing 

address.  

 

A. WELCOME – Mayor Lowe 
 

B. ROLL CALL – Cecile Rosenbaum, Town Clerk  

 

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Virginia Pillion, Junior Page    
  

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES       

 

 February 28, 2017 Departmental Budget Work Session minutes 

 March 1, 2017 Departmental Budget Work Session minutes 

 March 6, 2017 Work Session Minutes 

 March 6, 2017 Regular Meeting minutes  

 March 20, 2017 Non-Departmental Budget Minutes 

 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Please place your name on the sign-up sheet provided and 

comments are limited to three (3) minutes. 

 

F. PETITIONS, PUBLIC HEARINGS AND FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES –  
 

1. PUBLIC HEARING – consideration of construction by Old Glade Antique 

Tractor Association of a 30’ x 50’ event/picnic shelter and fire pit on property 

known as “Fairview Historic Site” located at 908 Hillman Highway, Abingdon, 

Virginia, parcel ID 106-A-2 – Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney 

 

 

 

 

 



Council Agenda 

April 3, 2017 

Page Two 

 

  

G. SECOND READINGS - None 

 

H. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS –  

 

1. Consider of asphalt resurfacing bids for FY 2016/2017 – John Dew, Director of 

Construction/Public Services 

 

I. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN MANAGER/ASSISTANT TOWN MANAGER   

 

1. Presentation by Blood Assurance - Kelly Hill, Representative  

 

2. Consideration of Letter of Agreement between Abingdon Main Street and Virginia 

Main Street – Greg Kelly, Town Manager  

 

3. Presentation of Annual Arborist report – Kevin Sigmon, Town Arborist 

 

4. Request for funding for “An Evening of Musical and Epicurean Delights” - Symphony 

of the Mountains – Cathy Lowe, Mayor 

 

5. Consideration of amendment of bylaws for Tourism Advisory Committee – Deb 

Icenhour, Town Attorney 
 

J. RESOLUTIONS –  

 

1. Consideration of a resolution designating April 3rd through April 7th as Local 

Government Education Week – Greg Kelly, Town Manager 

 

K. OLD BUSINESS or MATTERS NOT COVERED AT WORK SESSION 

 

L. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

 

1. Board of Building Code Appeals  

 Reappointment of Tandy Rasnake, who is eligible to serve another term 

 Reappointment of Michael Scott, who is eligible to serve another term 

2. Tourism Advisory Commission 

 Appointment to fill the unexpired term of Kathleen Bundy who is not eligible to 

complete the appointment 

 

 

 

 



Council Agenda 

April 3, 2017 

Page Two 

 

 

If Council so desires, Closed Session pursuant to the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, 

Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) for the purpose of considering applications to fill the positions on 

the Board of Building Code Appeals and the Tourism Advisory Commission.  

 

 

M. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 

 

N. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

 Cyber Security, Noon Knowledge, April 5, Small Business Incubator 

 Blood Assurance Blood Drive, April 6, Heartwood 

 Washington County Life Saving Crew Yard Sale, April 7-8, 237 Park Street 

 CRC Easter Egg Hunt ’17, April 8, Coomes Rec Center 

 Town Talk with Mayor Lowe, April 10, Highlands Union Bank 

 Council Retreat, April 14, Small Business Incubator 

 Garden Faire, April 14-15, Higher Ed Center 

 Abingdon Farmers Market Opening Day – April 15 

 Hike the Hill, April 15, William King Museum of Art 

 Heartwood Easter buffet, April 16th 

 Earth Day Celebration, April 22, Fields Penn Lawn 

 March for Babies Walk, April 22, Latture Field 

 Virginia Creeper Fest, April 29, Virginia Creeper Trail (Abingdon Trailhead & A 

Street) 

 Opening of O. Winston Link Exhibit, April 29, Findlay House 

 

O. ADJOURNMENT 
   

 

 

 

 



- 24 - 
February 28, 2017 

Budget Work Session Meeting 
 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 
 BUDGET WORK SESSION MEETING 

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 28, 2017 – 12:00 NOON 
ARTHUR CAMPBELL ROOM – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

 A Budget Work Session meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on Tuesday, 
February 28, 2017 at 12:00 noon in the Arthur Campbell Room of the Municipal 
Building. 

 

 

Welcome by Mayor Lowe 
 

A.     ROLL CALL 

Members of Council Present:                   Mrs. Cathy Lowe 
Mr. Richard E. Humphreys 
Mr. Robert M. Howard 
Mrs. M. Cindy Patterson 
Mr. J. Wayne Craig (Mr. Craig left the meeting 
at 4:05 p.m.) 

 

 

Administrative/Town Staff:                  Greg Kelly, Town Manager 
Cecile Rosenbaum, Asst. Town       
     Manager/Clerk 

          Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney 
Chuck Banner, Treasurer 

Kim Kingsley, Paralegal/Deputy Treasurer 
  

 
 Visitors:                                                        Bill Hartley 
 

The Council heard budget presentations from the following town department heads: 
 

 Stacey Reichler, Director of Human Resources – Ms. Patterson complimented Ms. 
Reichler for showing a reduction in her departmental budget. 
 

 Floyd Bailey, Director of Information Technology – Ms. Patterson inquired about 
the costs for radios.  

 

 Tony Sullivan, Chief of Police – Council members inquired about the LEOS program 
for the eligible hazard duty officers as well as the Fire Chief. Mr. Humphreys 
inquired about a staffing study for the Police Department. Mr. Craig inquired about 
the effects on the Police Department if LEOS was not included in this upcoming 
budget. 

 

 Kevin Worley, Director of Parks and Recreation – Mr. Worley inquired if the Council 



- 25 - 
February 28, 2017 

Budget Work Session Meeting 
 

wished to hold the fireworks display in July 2017.  Council members agreed that 
fireworks should be held in conjunction with the community event to be held at the 
Farmers Market on Saturday, July 1st. 

 
 Kevin Costello, Director of Tourism – Mr. Costello commented on a grant he had 

applied for and the proceeds would be used to re-build the Tourism website. Mr. 
Costello noted the upcoming 30th anniversary of the Creeper Trail and the addition 
of beach music, per Council request, to the Community event line up.  
 

 Greg Kelly, Town Manager – Ms. Rosenbaum, Assistant Town Manager inquired 
about the funding for the Arthur Campbell Awards line and Council agreed to leave 
the funding in the line for the upcoming budget.  Mr. Banner noted that the salary 
for Tonya Triplett had been moved to the Community Development budget line.  

 
Mayor Lowe declared the meeting recessed until the following day, March 1st at 12:00 noon, to 

resume departmental budget reviews. 

  

__________________________________ 

Cathy C. Lowe, Mayor 

 

 

__________________________________ 
Cecile Rosenbaum, Town Clerk  

 



- 26 - 
March 1, 2017 

Budget Work Session 
 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 
BUDGET WORK SESSION MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 1, 2017 – 5:30 PM 
ARTHUR CAMPBELL ROOM – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

 A Budget Work Session meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on 
Wednesday, March 1, 2017 at 12:00 noon in the Arthur Campbell Room of the 
Municipal Building. 

 

 

Welcome by Mayor Lowe 
 

A. ROLL CALL 
 

Members of Council Present:                   Mrs. Cathy Lowe 
Mr. Richard E. Humphreys 
Mr. Robert M. Howard 
Mrs. M. Cindy Patterson 

         Mr. J. Wayne Craig 
 

 

Administrative/Town Staff:                  Greg Kelly, Town Manager 
Cecile Rosenbaum, Asst. Town       
     Manager/Clerk 

          Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney 
Chuck Banner, Treasurer 

  
 

The Council discussed the following departmental budget presentations: 
 

 Marion Watts, Building Official – Mr. Humphreys inquired about the enforcement of the 

town’s fire code which Mr. Watts noted was covered by the Fire Chief; Mr. Watts 

commented that a future need would include a maintenance shop for tools and materials 

 Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney – Ms. Icenhour noted that the increase in her budget was due 

to the needs of the Code Enforcement officer for the town; Ms. Icenhour commented on 

upcoming Ordinances and the increase in FOIA requests over the last year 

 Chuck Banner, Treasurer/Dir. of Finance – Mr. Banner commented on the need for a full-

time purchasing agent for the town as well as a summer internship for a local accounting 

student; Mr. Banner commented on the auditor’s suggestion that a portion of some staff 

salaries needed to be funded from the Sewer Budget since they did work for that department 

 Sean Taylor, Int. Director of Planning – Council members inquired about training for 

members of the Planning Commission and Board of Zoning Appeals; Mr. Humphreys 

inquired about the Historic Properties budget 

 John Dew, Director of Public Services/Construction – Mr. Dew commented on his proposal 

to eliminate contracting out curbside recycling and perform the service in house. Mr. Banner 

commented on the projected cost savings and the front end expenses of purchasing recycling 

bins and a truck equipped to handle recycle pick up.  



- 27 - 
March 1, 2017 

Budget Work Session 
 

 Sarita Moore, Director of Wastewater Operations – Ms. Moore presented Council with her 

plan to handle staffing losses due to retirement and the need to fill those positions so they can 

train with the current staff.   

 Chief John McCormick, Fire Department – Mr. Humphreys inquired about the request to 

replace the department’s tanker truck.  

 At this time, on motion of Mr. Humphreys, seconded by Mrs. Patterson, Council 

convened in a closed session pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) for consideration of the 

evaluation of the Fire Chief. 

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  
  

Mrs. Patterson  Aye 
Mr. Craig   Aye 
Mr. Howard   Aye 
Mr. Humphreys  Aye 
Mayor Lowe   Aye 
 

 
On motion of Mr. Howard, seconded by Ms. Patterson, the Council reconvened in regular 
session.  
 
The roll call vote was as follows:  

Mrs. Patterson  Aye 
Mr. Craig   Aye 
Mr. Howard   Aye 
Mr. Humphreys  Aye 
Mayor Lowe   Aye 
 

 
The Assistant Town Manager, Cecile Rosenbaum, read the following certification to be 
adopted by the Council members:  
 
WHEREAS, the Council of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia has convened in a closed meeting on 
this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions set forth 
in the Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and  
 
WHEREAS, Sec. 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, requires a  
certification by the Town Council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with 
Virginia law; and  
 
NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved, that the Council of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia hereby 
certifies that to the best of each member’s knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully 
exempted from an open meeting requirement by Virginia law were discussed in closed meeting to 
which this certification resolution applies and (ii) only such public business matters as were 
identified in the motion convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the 
Town Council.  



- 28 - 
March 1, 2017 

Budget Work Session 
 

 
The certification was as follows:  
 

Mrs. Patterson  I so certify 
Mr. Craig   I so certify  
Mr. Howard   I so certify  
Mr. Humphreys  I so certify 
Mayor Lowe   I so certify 

 
Mayor Lowe declared the meeting adjourned.  

 
 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Cathy C. Lowe, Mayor 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Cecile Rosenbaum, Town Clerk 

 



- 29 - 

March 6, 2017 

Work Session Meeting 
 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 

WORK SESSION MEETING 

MONDAY, MARCH 6, 2017 – 5:30 PM 

ARTHUR CAMPBELL ROOM – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 
 A Work Session meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on Monday, March 6, 

2017 at 5:30 p.m. in the Arthur Campbell Room of the Municipal Building. 
 
 

Welcome by Mayor Lowe 
 

A. ROLL CALL 

 

Members of Council Present:                   Mrs. Cathy Lowe 
Mr. Richard E. Humphreys 
Mr. Robert M. Howard 

Mrs. M. Cindy Patterson 

         Mr. J. Wayne Craig 
 
 

Administrative/Town Staff:                  Greg Kelly, Town Manager 

Cecile Rosenbaum, Asst. Town       

     Manager/Clerk 

         Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney 

Chuck Banner, Treasurer 

Kim Kingsley, Paralegal/Deputy Treasurer 

Sean Taylor, Planning Dept. 

John Dew, Dir. Of Construction/Public Services 
Kevin Costello, Dir. of Tourism 
Kevin Worley, Dir. Of Parks & Rec 
Jon Phelps, IT Department 

Tonya Triplett, Community Dev. Coordinator 

Stacey Reichler, Dir. Of Human Resources 

Jennifer Montgomery, Main Street Director 

 

 Visitors:                                                   Sam Brown, Sam Rosenthal, Rich Macbeth  

         Doug Beatty, Warren Harris, Stephen Jett, 

         Nan Harman, Martha Keys, Sigrid Phillips, 

         Nancy Hart and others 

 

The Council discussed the following: 
 

C-1.    Discussion regarding Warren Harris’ request to have signature(s) removed 

from petitions presented to Council by Friends of Abingdon 

 

 Warren Harris presented information with regard to his request to have the signatures 



- 30 - 

March 6, 2017 

Work Session Meeting 
 

“blacked out” as he felt it subjected him to identity theft or other crimes.  After a lengthy 

discussion and review of the legal opinion of Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney, Council indicated 

they would vote on the matter during the Regular meeting. 

 

At this time, Mayor Lowe asked that Council consider the agenda items for consideration 

of bids for employee health insurance and for the town’s liability insurance. 

 

E – 1.   Update on employee health insurance renewal 

 

 Sam Brown, Consultant, reported to Council that he had requested bids for the town’s 

employee health insurance through an RFP. Mr. Brown reported that Local Choice submitted the 

lowest rate, even though there was an increase of 8% in premium costs.   Mr. Brown stated that 

he needed a decision by April 1st.  Mr. Brown recommended that the Council remain with Local 

Choice as they presented the best offer. Council advised that they would make a motion during 

the regular meeting. 

 

E – 4.  Update on RFP for town’s liability insurance 

 

 Sam Rosenthal, Consultant, reported to Council that a RFP had been completed with 

regard to the Town’s liability insurance.    He stated two companies, Virginia Municipal League, 

the Town’s current carrier, and Virginia Association of Counties Risk Management had 

responded.   Discussion regarding the details of the coverage, including costs, were discussed. 

Mr. Rosenthal reported that VACORP had submitted a bid approximately $70,000 less than 

VML’s current proposed renewal rate.  Council advised that they would make a motion during 

the regular meeting. 

 

 

 C-2. Update on picnic shelter proposed for Fairview 
 

Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney, advised Council that the Old Glade Antique Tractor Club 

had requested approval to be build a 30’ x 50’ wood/concrete event/picnic shelter and a small 

stack chimney on the property known as the “Fairview Historic Site”.   Ms. Icenhour reported 

that this matter would need to be advertised for public hearing and will be on the April 3, 2017 

Council regular agenda for consideration. 

 

C-3. Update on Sound/Video costs projections for Arthur Campbell meeting room 

 

 Per Council’s request at the February meeting, Cecile Rosenbaum, Assistant Town 

Manager, presented to Council a memo from Floyd Bailey, Director of Information Technology 

detailing the costs associated with adding audio and video recording to the Arthur Campbell 

meeting room.   After discussion, Council indicated that they would make a formal motion in the 

regular meeting to authorize Mr. Kelly, Town Manager, to move forward with installing both 

visual and audio up to $5,000, and noted the funding will come from the Council’s contingency 

line. 

 



- 31 - 

March 6, 2017 

Work Session Meeting 
 

 D-1. Update on Heritage TV 

 

Cecile Rosenbaum, Assistant Town Manager, reported that Floyd Bailey, Director of IT, 

stated that technology was in place for Heritage television to broadcast monthly council 

meetings.   

 

 D-2. Update on partnership with Virginia Highlands Community College 

 

 Councilman Howard stated that the banners had not been finalized at this time and would 

offer an update at the April meeting. 

 

D-3. Update on Appalachian Power project involving the Virginia Highlands 

Airport 

 

 Mayor Lowe stated that House Bill 1760 passed and she is not aware of any decision at 

this time by the State Corporation Commission.  

 

D-4. Consideration of Letter of Agreement between Abingdon Main Street and 

Virginia Main Street 

 

 Greg Kelly, Town Manager, advised Council that a meeting was recently held with 

Jennifer Montgomery and Cecile Rosenbaum, Assistant Town Manager.   Mr. Kelly noted that 

several modifications needed to be made to the agreement with the town and Abingdon Main 

Street, before the agreement letter with Abingdon Main Street and Virginia Main Street could be 

finalized. Mr. Kelly noted that the agreements would be presented for consideration at the April 

Council meeting. 

 

D-5. Update on information provided to Council relative to West Main Street 

near Brown Dental Associates 

 

  Councilman Humphreys reported that he, Councilman Craig and John Dew, Director of 

Public Services and Constructed visited the subject area to review his concerns about the 

entrance to Brown Dental.   Councilman Humphreys reported that Councilman Craig and John 

Dew, both traffic engineers, felt that the lanes were properly marked and that he respected their 

opinion that the lanes were properly marked.  No further action was required on this matter and 

Mayor Lowe noted that it could be removed from Old Business. 

 

  

E-2. Discussion of replacement of signal light at the intersection of Valley Street 

and Russell Road 

 

 Greg Kelly, Town Manager, reported that he had recent calls from citizens stating that the 

traffic was flowing better at the intersection of Valley Street and Russell Road without the signal 

in place.   John Dew, Director of Public Works/Construction, recommended that a traffic study 

be conducted at several other areas in the Town that may be more appropriate for the signal light.    



- 32 - 

March 6, 2017 

Work Session Meeting 
 

Council agreed to Mr. Dew’s recommendation, which he stated would take approximately one 

year to complete. 

 

 E-3. Update on town ordinances 

 

 Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney, reported that she had been working on several ordinances.   

Councilman Humphreys questioned whether business license applications had been sent to the 

Airbnb businesses located within the Town limits.   Mrs. Icenhour responded that those had been 

mailed and it was her understanding that a few have obtained the proper license.   Mrs. Icenhour 

further stated that it appears that it will be the end of March before state legislation regulating 

Airbnb’s will be passed.   Councilman Humphreys asked if Airbnb would be collecting the 

lodging tax and reporting it to the Town.   Mrs. Icenhour stated that the collection of lodging tax 

would be handled by the Town in the same manner it is for hotels, motels, and bed and 

breakfasts. 

 

E-5. Reports on the Town owned properties 

 

Councilman Humphreys stated that he would like to be notified when the building 

department does inspections on Town owned properties.   Greg Kelly, Town Manager, stated 

that he would advise the building department of the request. 

 

E-6. Update on mission statements relative to boards and commissions 

 

Council discussed presented mission statements.   Mayor Lowe advised Council that 

several boards would be meeting in the near future to review and adopt their statements.   Ms. 

Patterson requested that the approved statements presented in the Council packet be placed on 

the Town’s website. 

 

E-7. Report on activities of Community Development Coordinator 

 

Tonya Triplett, Community Development Coordinator, updated Council as to meetings 

with local business owners and events she had attended.   Cecile Rosenbaum, Assistant Town 

Manager, advised Council that Mrs. Triplett had been contacted by an individual inquiring as to 

whether the Town would be interested in the Old Exxon station on Main Street.   Discussion 

ensured and it was decided that the Town would have no interest in the purchase of said 

property. 

 

F-1. Update on the tennis court air dome at the Coomes Center 

 

Mayor Lowe stated that the matter has been reviewed and Council will address it in the 

regular meeting. 

 

F-2. Update on Urban Pathway Project 

 

John Dew, Director of Public Services/Construction, advised Council that the project was 



- 33 - 

March 6, 2017 

Work Session Meeting 
 

moving forward and after meetings with the design engineer, he hoped to have bids ready to go 

out in the next few weeks. Mr. Dew stated he would have an update at the May meeting. 

 

F-3. Update on VDOT upkeep of exit ramps 

 

John Dew, Director of Public Services/Construction, stated that he has had no complaints 

of additional trash/debris on the exit ramps but would continue to monitor. 

 

F-4. Update on split rail fence at Exit 17 

 

John Dew, Director of Public Services/Construction, presented images of split rail 

fencing for Council’s consideration.   Councilman Humphreys suggested that Mr. Dew contact 

the members of Veteran’s Park Commission for information regarding the company that supplied 

the railing at the park. 

 

 

F-5. Update on Tourism Zone project 

 

Mayor Lowe stated because of lack of time, the matter will be discussed during the 

regular council meeting. 

 

Mayor Lowe declared a 5-minute recess for Council to reconvene in Chambers for the 

regular meeting.  

 

 

__________________________________ 

Cathy C. Lowe, Mayor 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Cecile Rosenbaum, Town Clerk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



- 34 - 

March 6, 2017 

Regular Council meeting 
 

 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, MARCH 6, 2017 – 7:30 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

 

A Regular Council meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on Monday, March 

6, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 

 

A.    WELCOME BY MAYOR LOWE 

 

B.  ROLL CALL 

 

Members of Council Present:  

Mrs. Cathy C. Lowe, Mayor 

Mr. Richard E. Humphreys, Vice Mayor 

Mr. Robert M. Howard 

Mrs. M. Cindy Patterson 

Mr. J. Wayne Craig 

 

Administrative/Town Staff:           Greg Kelly, Town Manager 

Cecile Rosenbaum, Asst. Town Mgr/Town                      

Clerk 

                        Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney 

                                        Jon Phelps, IT Department  

                                        Chuck Banner, Director of Finance 

                                        John McCormick, Fire Chief 

                                        Kevin Worley, Dir. of Parks & Rec 

       Kevin Costello, Dir. of Tourism 

       John Dew, Dir. of Public Services/Const. 

    John Holbrook, Lt., Abingdon Police Dept 

                                        Kim Kingsley, Paralegal/Deputy Treasurer 

                                        Tonya Triplett, Comm. Development Coordinator 

 

 

Visitors:      Richard Rose, Edison Jennings, Janan Hurst, 

Leslie Bradley, Al Bradley, Margaret Gregg, 

Stephen Jett, Marjorie Smith, Barry L. Proctor, 

Michael A. Trepiccione, Rich Macbeth, Sigrid 

Phillips, and others 

 

 

 

 

 



- 35 - 

March 6, 2017 

Regular Council meeting 
 

 

C.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Eller Budding, Local Government Student. 

 

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

On motion by Mr.  Humphreys, seconded by Mr. Howard, the Council, approved 

the minutes of the February 6, 2017 work session minutes as presented; the February 6, 

2017 regular meeting with the correction “that Council recommended that Jennifer 

Montgomery, Abingdon Main Street Director, meet with the Town Manager and review the 

agreements with Virginia Main Street, Abingdon Main Street, and the town”; and the 

February 8, 2017, recessed meeting  with the correction “that Mayor Lowe did not participate 

in the conversation regarding employee health insurance as her employer, Virginia Highlands 

Small Business Incubator, mirrors the town’s benefits”. 

 

Mr. Craig inquired about his motion during the February 6, 2017 Regular meeting relative to a 

request to have the Town Manager put out an RFP to review the Air Quality in the area of Exit 

17. Mayor Lowe informed Mr. Craig that she had reviewed the matter and Mr. Craig did not 

mention RFP in his motion. 

 

   The roll call vote was as follows: 

 

 Mr. Craig Aye 

 Mrs. Patterson Aye 

 Mr. Howard Aye  

 Mr. Humphreys                Aye 

 Mayor Lowe Aye 

 

At this time, Cecile Rosenbaum, Assistant Town Manager commented to Council that she had 

received notification from the IT staff that the live video feed of the meeting was not working 

and that they hoped it would be restored in a few minutes.  

 

E. PUBLIC COMMENTS   
 

 The following addressed Council: 

 

 Richard Rose, 262 Bradley Street 

 Edison Jennings, 247 E. Main Street 

 Janan Hurst, 185 Long View Drive 

 Leslie Bradley, 143 Stonewall Heights 

 Al Bradley, 143 Stonewall Heights 

 Margaret Gregg, 113 Trailview  

 Stephen Jett, 333 Court Street 

 Michael A. Trepiccione, 289 Lowland Street 



- 36 - 

March 6, 2017 

Regular Council meeting 
 

 Rich Macbeth, 1139 Panorama Drive 

 Sigrid Phillips, 445 Circle Drive 

 

F. PETITIONS, PUBLIC HEARINGS AND FIRST READING OF ORDINANCES –    

                None 

 

G. SECOND READINGS OF ORDINANCES - None 

 

H.  CONSIDERATION OF ANY BIDS – None 
 

 

I. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN MANAGER AND ASST. TOWN MANAGER 

 

1. Discussion regarding Warren Harris request to have signature(s) removed from 

petitions presented to the Council by Friends of Abingdon – Greg Kelly, Town 

Manager  

 

Mr. Kelly, Town Manager, reported to Council that Mr. Harris had contacted him via 

email regarding a request to blur or black out the signatures on a group of petitions that the 

Friends of Abingdon presented to Council during the January 11th, 2017 meeting. Mr. Kelly 

noted that Mr. Harris was concerned that his signature could be used for identity theft.  Mr. Kelly 

commented that the petitions had been placed on the town’s website and he had requested that 

Town Attorney, Deb Icenhour, research the matter and issue a written opinion to Council. Ms. 

Icenhour opined that the town was under no obligation to remove the signatures as the petitions 

were presented at a public meeting and were on record in the Town Manager’s office for viewing 

by the public. Mr. Kelly noted that the matter had been discussed at length during the prior work 

session and asked Council to make a motion regarding Mr. Harris’ request.  

 

Mr. Harris commented that Mayor Lowe had informed him prior to the meeting that he 

could speak about the issue for 3 minutes and he commented that the signature(s) be “blacked 

out” not blurred and the request was a matter of common sense.  

 

Mr. Humphreys inquired about the removal of signatures and its relation to Freedom of 

Information Act.  Ms. Patterson commented that she had spoken with an attorney at VML 

regarding the matter and she did not support promotion of identity theft. Mr. Craig noted that he 

felt removing the petitions from the website was a step in the right direction. 

   

On motion by Mr. Craig, seconded by Mr. Humphreys, the Council authorized 

Greg Kelly, Town Manager to remove the petitions from the Town’s website and 

preserve the original petitions for viewing by the public in his office in Town Hall.  

 

  Mr. Craig  Aye 

  Mrs. Patterson Aye 

  Mr. Howard  Aye 

  Mr. Humphreys Aye 



- 37 - 

March 6, 2017 

Regular Council meeting 
 

  Mayor. Lowe  Aye 

 

2. Consideration of Letter of Agreement between Abingdon Main Street and 

Virginia Main Street – Jennifer Montgomery, Director of Abingdon Main Street 

 

Mayor Lowe noted that this matter had been discussed during the work session meeting 

and would be back on the agenda for the April 3, 2017 work session. 

 

J.          RESOLUTIONS - None 

 

K. OLD BUSINESS OR MATTERS NOT COVERED AT WORK SESSION 

 

 At this time, Mayor Lowe noted Council was able to discuss several work session items 

and would review those now.    

 

 Update on Sound/Video costs projections for Arthur Campbell meeting room 

 

 On motion by Mrs. Patterson, seconded by Mr. Humphreys, the Council authorized 

Greg Kelly, Town Manager, to invest in new audio and video equipment to record all 

meetings in the Arthur Campbell meeting room and further authorized Mr. Kelly to spend 

up to $5,000 from Council contingency for the costs.   

 

  Mr. Craig  Aye 

  Mrs. Patterson Aye 

  Mr. Howard  Aye 

  Mr. Humphreys Aye 

  Mayor Lowe  Aye 

 

 Update RFP for Town’s liability insurance    

 

 On motion by Mr. Humphreys, seconded by Mr. Craig, Council authorized Greg 

Kelly, Town Manager, to execute any documents necessary to accept the quote from 

Virginia Association of Counties (VACORP) for the town’s liability insurance.  

 

  Mr. Craig  Aye 

  Mrs. Patterson Aye 

  Mr. Howard  Aye 

  Mr. Humphreys Aye 

  Mayor Lowe  Aye 

 

 Employee health insurance renewal 

 

  On motion by Mr. Mr. Howard, seconded by Mr. Humphreys, the Council 

authorized Greg Kelly, Town Manager, to execute any and all documents necessary to 

renew the town’s employee health insurance with Local Choice for another year.  



- 38 - 

March 6, 2017 

Regular Council meeting 
 

 

  Mr. Craig  Aye 

  Mrs. Patterson Aye 

  Mr. Howard  Aye 

  Mr. Humphreys Aye 

  Mayor Lowe  Aye 

 

 Update on the tennis court air dome at the Coomes Center 

 

Mayor Lowe stated that this matter had been discussed at last month’s meeting.  She 

advised that the air dome had been a gift to the Town, however the Town was not aware of the 

electric utility costs associated with operating the air dome.   The dome will not be utilized and 

the Town will make arrangements to return it and/or forward it to another organization that may 

be interested. 

 

 Update on Tourism Zone project 

 

Kevin Costello, Director of Tourism, advised Council that he has been working to 

develop an incentive district to areas between the new Dollar General on the east end of town to 

Old Jonesboro Road.   Mayor Lowe noted that an Ordinance establishing the Tourism Zones 

would have to be passed by Council and that Ms. Icenhour would be developing that for review 

by Council at a later meeting. 

 

Mayor Lowe reported that Kevin Costello, Director of Tourism had notified the Town 

Manager that he had accepted another position in his home state of New York and he and his 

family would be moving up there in late spring. Mr. Costello noted his last day at work would be 

March 24, 2017. Mayor Lowe thanked Mr. Costello for his service to the town and wished his 

family all the best for the future. 

 

   

L.    APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

 

On motion of Mr. Humphreys, seconded by Mrs. Patterson, Council went into 

closed session pursuant to the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, Section 2.2.-3711(A)(1) 

for the purpose of considering applications to fill open positions on the Abingdon 

Redevelopment and Housing Authority, Planning Commission, and Historic Preservation 

Review Board.  The roll call vote was as follows: 

 

 

  Mr. Craig             Aye 

  Mrs. Patterson Aye  

  Mr. Howard   Aye 

  Mr. Humphreys  Aye  

  Mayor Lowe   Aye  

 



- 39 - 

March 6, 2017 

Regular Council meeting 
 

On motion of Mr. Humphreys, seconded by Mr. Howard, the Council reconvened in 

regular session.  

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

 

Mr. Craig   Aye  

Mrs. Patterson  Aye  

Mr. Howard   Aye  

Mr. Humphreys  Aye  

Mayor Lowe   Aye  

 

Cecile Rosenbaum, Clerk, read the following certification to be adopted by the Council 

members:  

 

WHEREAS, the Council of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia has convened in a closed 

meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the 

provisions set forth in the Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and  

 

WHEREAS, Sec. 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, requires a 

certification by the Town Council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with 

Virginia law; and  

 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved, that the Council of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia 

hereby certifies that to the best of each member’s knowledge (i) only public business matters 

lawfully exempted from an open meeting requirement by Virginia law were discussed in closed 

meeting to which this certification resolution applies and (ii) only such public business matters 

as were identified in the motion convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed or 

considered by the Town Council.  

 

The certification was as follows:   

 

Mr. Craig   I so certify  

Mrs. Patterson  I so certify  

Mr. Howard   I so certify  

Mr. Humphreys  I so certify  

Mayor Lowe   I so certify  

 

 

 

On motion of Mr. Humphreys, seconded by Mr. Howard, the Council approved the  

reappointment of Monica Appleby to the Abingdon Redevelopment and Housing 

Authority.  

  

The roll call vote was as follows:  

 



- 40 - 

March 6, 2017 

Regular Council meeting 
 

Mr. Craig   Aye  

Mrs. Patterson  Aye  

Mr. Howard   Aye  

Mr. Humphreys  Aye  

Mayor Lowe   Aye  

 

On motion of Mr. Humphreys, seconded by Mr. Howard, the Council approved the  

appointment of Jayne Duehring to the Planning Commission.  

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

 

Mr. Craig   Aye  

Mrs. Patterson  Aye  

Mr. Howard   Aye  

Mr. Humphreys  Aye  

Mayor Lowe   Aye  

 

On motion of Mrs. Patterson, seconded by Mr. Humphreys, the Council approved 

the appointment of Byrum Geisler to the Historic Preservation Review Board.  

 

The roll call vote was as follows:  

 

Mr. Craig   Aye  

Mrs. Patterson  Aye  

Mr. Howard   Aye  

Mr. Humphreys  Aye  

Mayor Lowe   Aye  

  

M. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS 

 

 Mr. Craig reported that he had attended the Bristol Virginia Utility Board meeting;  

 Ms. Patterson reported that she had attended the board’s regular meetings;  

 Mayor Lowe reported that she participated in the Read Across America event. 

 

 

Mayor Lowe declared the meeting adjourned. 

 

 

____________________________________ 
Cathy C. Lowe, Mayor 

 

 
Cecile Rosenbaum, Town Clerk 

 
 



- 41 - 

March 20, 2017 

Budget Work Session Meeting 
 

 

 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 

BUDGET WORK SESSION MEETING 

MONDAY, MARCH 20, 2017 – 12:00 PM 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

 A Budget Work Session meeting of the Abingdon Town Council was held on Monday, 

March 20, 2017 at 5:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building. 
 
 

Welcome by Mayor Lowe 
 

A. ROLL CALL 

 

Members of Council Present:                   Mrs. Cathy Lowe 
Mr. Richard E. Humphreys 
Mr. Robert M. Howard 

Mrs. M. Cindy Patterson 

         Mr. J. Wayne Craig 
 
 

Administrative/Town Staff:                  Greg Kelly, Town Manager 

Cecile Rosenbaum, Asst. Town       

     Manager/Clerk 

         Deb Icenhour, Town Attorney 

Chuck Banner, Treasurer 

Kim Kingsley, Paralegal/Deputy Treasurer 

CJ McGlothlin, IT Department 

 

Greg Kelly, Town Manager, advised the Council that the FY2017-2018 budget would be 

presented on April 1st, together with his budget message.    Mr. Kelly advised that the balance of 

contingency and non-departmental was a total of $578,723 and that some requests had been funded 

in this fiscal year, including the Washington County Business Challenge, Kiwanis Christmas 

parade, District Three, Virginia Highlands Small Business Incubator for a total of $99,681. 

 

The Council discussed the following: 
 

1. Mayor Lowe commented that Council would hear presentations from non-

departmental agencies requesting funding from the Town in the order of the 

sign-in sheet.   

 

 David Millsap   Feeding America 

 Jennifer Montgomery  Abingdon Main Street 

 Ron Stevenson  Old Glade Antique Tractor Association 

 Betsy White   William King Museum of Art 



- 42 - 

March 20, 2017 

Budget Work Session Meeting 
 

 Becky Caldwell and  Virginia Highlands Festival 

I B Dent 

 Kathlyn Terry   Appalachia Sustainable Development 

 Christine Webb  Senior Service Center, Inc. dba The Community  

    Center of Abingdon 

 Jennifer Kling   Whites Mill Foundation, Inc. 

 Kathi Roark   Children’s Advocacy Center of Highlands  

Community Services 

 

At this time, Mayor Lowe left the dais and spoke from the podium on her proposed budget for 

the Virginia Highlands Small Business Incubator. Ms. Patterson inquired about long term leases 

at the Incubator. 

 

Mayor Lowe commented on a conversation she had regarding the request from Whites Mill 

Foundation. 

 

Mayor Lowe noted that she had received a message from Charlotte Parsons, Director of the 

Washington County Library, that she was unable to attend to present her budget request. Council 

did not set another time to additional presentations of non-departmental requests. 

 

Mr. Kelly recommended that Council consider the return on investment from the agencies 

requesting funding as a criterion for determining an appropriation. Mr. Kelly noted that he had 

included that message in all of his 11 years of budget presentations to Council.  

 

Town Manager, advised the Council, after appropriations had been discussed, that the Council 

would receive the full balanced budget on March 31st .  After discussion, Council decided on April 

3, 2017 at 4:30 pm for the budget work session.  Mr. Kelly also suggested dates to schedule a 

Council retreat in April or May with the speaker being Mark Flynn, former attorney for Virginia 

Municipal League.  After discussion, Council agreed upon April 14th at 9:00 am for the Council 

retreat. 

 

Mr. Kelly reported on the recent restructuring of the Parks and Recreation Department and that 

new staff assignments would be made very soon. 

 

Mr. Kelly commented on the recent installation of decorative posts for stop signs at Virginia 

Highlands Community College and that they might be considered for signs in town. 

 

Mayor Lowe declared the meeting adjourned.  

 

 

____________________________________ 
Cathy C. Lowe, Mayor 

 

 
Cecile Rosenbaum, Town Clerk 





`1234567890-=qwertyuiop[]\asdfghjkl;’zxcvQWERTYUIOP[]ASDFGHJKL;’ZXCVBNM,./~!@#$%^&*()_+`1234567890-=qwertyuiop[]\asdfghjkl;’zxcvbnm,./`QWERTYUIOP[]ASDFGHJKL;’ZXCVBNM,./~!@#$%^&*()_+Monday, March 20, 2017 B9To advertise in the Bristol Herald Courier call 276-645-2525

Trustee Sales Trustee Sales

Trustee Sales Trustee Sales

LEGAL ADSLEGAL ADS
Meetings and Events

Proposals, Requests For

Trustee Sales

Trustee Sales

REAL ESTATE
FOR SALE

Homes for Sale

Homes for Sale

Manufact Home Sale

REAL ESTATE
FOR SALE

Real Estate Auctions

REAL ESTATE
FOR RENT

Apartments Unfurnished

Apartments Unfurnished

Condo, Townhome, Residental Rent

Condo, Townhome, Residental Rent

Houses, Unfurnished

Camper or Boat
that you need to

Sell?
Call to Advertise

in the Classifieds!
Call to Advertise in

the Classifieds!

Sell your stuff and make some
fast cash!

The people’s
marketplace.

That’s
Classified!

The people’s
marketplace.

That’s
Classified!

FSBO Abingdon, VA
373 Morningside Dr. Brick
Duplex with 2 one B/R units
approx. 650 sq ft. each. Most
appl. included. $105,000
Call or text for appoinment
to view. 276-274-8235

Rosedale VA. 1 story brick
home in quite neighborhood.
2288 sqft, 2 car det garage,
3 BR, 3BA (1 jacuzzi tub), bonus
room, living room, family room,

covered patio in back.
For sale only. 276-880-3213

INVESTMENT OPPORTUNITY!
ATTENTION: CHURCHES, SCHOOLS, OR

APARTMENT COMPLEX BUILDERS/INVESTORS!
Bristol, TN- 43,000+ sqft, 4.5 acres, 31 Rooms w/gym & cafeteria,
fenced playground, inside courtyard Building is in excellent

condition. REDUCED!!! Priced to sell at $375,000.
Call 276-669-2088

REDUCED TO $325,000!!

See Zillow – 1009 Oldham Ct, Kingsport, TN
Elegant custom Tudor home in prestigious area.
5,000 sqft home with 4 Bedrooms, 3.5 Baths, 2
wood burning fireplaces, hardwood & tile floors,
four seasons room, 20 x 40 pool, PLUS in-law

quarters on lower level.
Call for an appointment.

423-288-5237

REDUCED TO $275,000!!

See Zillow – 5117 Foxfire Trail, Kingsport, TN
Elegant area between Bristol and Kingsport. Over
5,000 sqft custom Tudor home with 4 Bedrooms,
3.5 Baths. Remodeled with cherry kitchen cabi-
nets, new hardwood & tile floors. 3rd floor media

room or artist studio. 35 x 35 lower level ballroom,
2 wood burning fireplaces, deck & great views!

Call for an appointment.
423-288-5237

Downtown
Damascus,
VA, 1920’s
farmhouse,
great
location on
quiet street,
overlooks
Beaverdam

Creek across from town park. Totally
remodeled 2004-2006 with over $60,000
in additional improvements since
2012. Well maintained.1/2 block to
VA Creeper Trail. More pics listed on
Zillow. Asking $212,000. This is a quality
home, all improvements documented
and available. Not a rental or rent to
own. For sale by owner. 276-475-3503.
No calls after 8 pm please. Shown by
appointment only.

Immacualte 16x70 Clayton Home 2
Bdm 1 Bath, eat-in kitchen w/baywin-
dows, lg front porch, strg bldg. Can
stay in park with approval. Must See!
$11,999. 865-243-6222 or 423-967-7995

Lifetime Knive Collection Auction
Satuday, March 18th @ 5 PM Sunday,
April 2nd April Fools Day Antique Auc-

tion @ 1PM.

Consignments Welcome!!
Terms and Conditions: 13% Buyer’s
Premium with 3% Discount for those
who Pay with Cash or Good Check. All
Items are sold as is where is with no
warranties implied of any kind. All

sales are final. All announcements day
of sale take precedence over pre-sale

advertising
Check Us Out on Facebook!
AOK Auction Company
18100 Lee Hwy.

Abingdon, VA 24210
276-477-0410
276-676-0009
Lic #000954

1 & 2 Br Apt. located near
Exit 7 off I-81. No pets.
Water, trash, lawn care

furnished
Call: 276-206-6022

Abingdon, Va. - 2 Br apts.
$475 -$600 mo.

Pet friendly available
More info. at

www.loosechange.net
Call: 276-628-8140

All utilities paid. 1BR, VA, No
Pets. Call: 276-791-7790 or

276-591-6101

Brentwood Towns Apt.
2 BR, 1.5 BA, $525 mo +Sec.
Dep, appl., water & trash
incl. W/D hkup. No pets.
Call: 276-608-8219

Non Smoking 1 BR, appl. & water
furn., no pets, near Bristol Mall,
$450-$550 mo. 276-696-2713

QUOTES WANTED
Bristol Tennessee Essential Serv-
ices is seeking proposals for Audit-
ing Services for the year ending
June 30, 2017 due by 4pm on
Friday, April 7, 2017. Specifications
may be obtained by contacting
Lola McVey, Director of Accounting
and Finance, at 423-793-5517,
Monday - Friday from 8am-5pm.
BTES reserves the right to reject
any and all proposals and to waive
informalities on all or any part of
any proposal which may be
deemed to be in the best interests
of BTES.

TRUSTEE SALE
18220 Macedonia Road,
Abingdon, VA 24211
Washington County

In execution of a Deed of Trust in
the original principal amount of
$74,825.00, dated August 24, 2004
recorded in the Clerk’s Office of
the Circuit Court of theWashing-
ton County, Virginia, in Document
No. 040007038, at Page 210, default
having occurred in the payment of
the Note thereby secured and at
the request of the holder of said
Note, the undersigned Substitute
Trustee will offer for sale at public
auction at the front entrance (new
addition) to the Washington Coun-
ty Courthouse, 189 East Main
Street, Abingdon, on April 18, 2017
at 10:00 AM the property described
in said deed, located at the above
address and briefly described as:
Lot 15, Woodlea Acres, with im-
provements thereon.

Subject to any and all covenants,
conditions, restrictions, ease-
ments, and all other matters of re-
cord taking priority over the Deed
of Trust, if any, affecting the afore-
said property.

TERMS OF SALE: CASH: A deposit
of $20,000.00 or 10% of the sales
price, whichever is lower, cash or
certified check will be required at
the time of sale, but no more than
$10,000.00 of cash will be accept-
ed, with settlement within fifteen
(15) days from the date of sale.
Sale is subject to post sale confir-
mation that the borrower did not
file for protection under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code prior to the sale,
as well as to post-sale confirma-
tion of the status of the loan with
the loan servicer including, but not
limited to, determination of wheth-
er the borrower entered into any re-
payment agreement, reinstated or
paid off the loan prior to the sale.
In any such event, the sale shall be
null and void, and the Purchaser’s
sole remedy, in law or equity, shall
be the return of his deposit without
interest. Additional terms may be
announced at the time of sale. Pur-
suant to the Federal Fair Debt Col-
lection Practices Act, we advise
you that this firm is a debt collec-
tor attempting to collect the indebt-
edness referred to herein and any
information we obtain will be used
for that purpose.

SAMUEL I. WHITE, P.C.,
Substitute Trustee

This is a communication from a
debt collector.

FOR INFORMATION CONTACT:
SAMUEL I. WHITE, P.C. (49784)
5040 Corporate Woods Drive,
Suite 120
Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462
757-457-1460
Call Between 9:00 a.m. and 5:00
p.m. or visit our website at
www.siwpc.net

REDUCED!
IN THE COUNTRY 1 LEVEL LIVING
4 MILES OUTSIDE ABINGDON

6.1 Acres, custom built ranch,
approx. 3000 sq. ft, 3-4 Br, 3.5
Ba, formal living & dining room,
huge den w/stone FP, HW peg-
ged flooring, large kit. w/solid
oak cabinetry, new granite
counter tops, front porch,
screened back porch, big ga-
rage (1378 sq. ft upper level),
full drive in basement with
stone FP, 2 heat pumps, 42’x10’
steel deck, central vac, inter-
com, large drive thru barn,
equipment shed, small equine
farm, paved driveway, apple &
pear trees, grapevine - 1000
acre view. MOVE IN CONDITION!
$359,000. More info. call 276-
608-6266.

Abingdon, VA - Russell Rd. 2
Bdrm, 1.5 bath. $575 + deposit.
No pets. Call (276) 623-1485

Avoca Village
Pet friendly. 2BR, 2.5 BA.

$695 + dep.
423-968-4112 or 423-968-2081

BEAUTIFUL, SPACIOUS, FAMILY
FRIENDLY - HUNTER HILLS .
2 BR, 2.5 BA, Total Renovation
with Custom Upgrades, Must

See to Appreciate.
$750/mo. + $750 Deposit.
Call/Text 423-383-2828

BEAUTIFUL! SPACIOUS!
HUNTER HILLS, BRISTOL, TN.
2 bedrooms, 2.5 baths, garage.
No pets. $700/month plus
deposit. 423-383-4000

Bristol, VA - Condo for Rent - Exit 5,
I81 - Carriage Hill - Furnished, 2 br,
1.5 ba. No pets. $595 + deposit. OR
sell for $49,000. Call (276) 623-1485

TRUSTEE’S SALE OF
102 DOWNY PLACE,

BRISTOL, VIRGINIA 24201
CITY OF BRISTOL

In execution of a certain deed of
trust dated 01/05/05, in the origi-
nal principal amount of 98,705.00
recorded in the City of Bristol, Vir-
ginia, as in Deed Book 475, Page
0103, as amended by an instrument
appointing the undersigned as Sub-
stitute Trustee, default having oc-
curred in the payment of the Note
thereby secured and at the request
of the holder, the undersigned Sub-
stitute Trustee will offer for sale at
public auction in the front of the
building housing the Circuit Court
of the CITY OF BRISTOL, VA located
at 497 Cumberland Street, Bristol,
Virginia, 24201 on April 4, 2017, at
4:15 pm, the property described in
said deed of trust, located at the
above address, with improvements
thereon and more particularly de-
scribed as follows: LOT 2 IN
BELLEHAVEN, SECTION 1, AS
SHOWN ON PLAT OF SAID SUBDIVI-
SION OF RECORD IN THE CLERK’S
OFFICE OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF
BRISTOL, VIRGINIA, IN PLAT BOOK
2, PAGE 48. TERMS OF SALE: Nei-
ther the Substitute Trustee nor the
holder of the note secured by the
deed of trust will deliver posses-
sion of the property to the success-
ful bidder. The purchaser at the
sale will be required to pay all clos-
ing costs. Real estate taxes,
water/sewer fees and other public
charges will be prorated as of the
date of sale. The risk of loss or dam-
age to the property passes to the
purchaser immediately upon the
conclusion of the Substitute Trust-
ee’s sale. Terms: A bidder’s deposit
of ten percent (10%)of the sale
price or ten percent price (10%) of
the original principal balance of
the subject deed of trust, whichev-
er is lower, in the form of cash or
certified funds payable to the Sub-
stitute Trustee must be present at
the time of sale. The balance of the
purchase price will be due within
20 days at the office of the Substi-
tute Trustee. Time is of the es-
sence as to the closing date and
the payment of the purchase price.
If payment of the balance does not
occur within twenty days of the
sale date, the deposit will be forfeit-
ed. Seller shall not be responsible
for any costs incurred by the pur-
chaser in connection with their pur-
chase or settlement, including,
without limitation, state and local
recording fees, title insurance or re-
search, or any other costs of pur-
chaser’s acquisition. Trustee shall
have no duty to obtain possession
for purchaser. All risks of casualty
pass to successful bidder at conclu-
sion of bidding. The property and
the improvements thereon will be
sold "AS IS" and without represen-
tation or warranties of any kind.
The sale is subject to all liens, en-
cumbrances, conditions, ease-
ments and restrictions, if any, supe-
rior to the mentioned deed of trust
and lawfully affecting the property.
Sale is subject to post-sale confir-
mation that the borrower did not
file for protection under the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code prior to the sale,
as well as to post-sale confirma-
tion and audit of the status of the
loan with the loan servicer includ-
ing, but not limited to, determina-
tion of whether the borrower(s) en-
tered into any repayment agree-
ment, reinstated or paid off the
loan prior to the sale. In any such
event, the sale shall be null and
void, and the Purchaser’s sole rem-
edy, in law or equity, shall be the
return of the Purchaser’s deposit
without interest. Additional terms
to be announced at the sale. For
more information contact: Abby K.
Moynihan, Esq., member of Surety
Trustees, at 301-490-3361 or
www.mwc-law.com.

BRVA Townhouse (exit 5 area).
Excellent Condition - 2BR, 1.5BA.
W/D hookup, dishwasher,
trash pickup included.
No pets/smoking.
$600/mo + deposit.
423-764-2673

404 Massengil Park Rd
Bluff City TN

2 BR, 2 BA, W/D hookup,
kitchen appliences, on Boone
Lake, 2 car partially enclosed
garage, small yard with
gazeebo out back.

$750/mo with $750 required
deposit and 1 yr lease.

423-341-3841 or 423-534-5669

908 Reedy Creek Rd, BRTN
3BR, 2BA, stove / refrigerator /
dishwasher furnished. Central
H/A, basement, one car garage,
hardwood floors thru out.
Ideal location between Kprt
Lowes and Exit 7 Lowes, close
to hospital and interstate.
No Pets. $750 mo.
Also another 3 Bdrm,

everything is the same except
no bsmt/garage. $700 mo

423-217-1109

TRUSTEE’S SALE OF
406 DIXON AVENUE, APPALACHIA, VIRGINIA 24216

COUNTY OF WISE
In execution of a certain deed of trust dated 08/07/15, in the original principal
amount of 108,363.00 recorded in the County of Wise, Virginia, as Instrument
No. 201503871, as amended by an instrument appointing the undersigned as
Substitute Trustee, default having occurred in the payment of the Note there-
by secured and at the request of the holder, the undersigned Substitute Trust-
ee will offer for sale at public auction in the front of the building housing the
Circuit Court of the COUNTY OF WISE, VA located at 206 East Main Street,
Wise, Virginia, 24293 on April 4, 2017, at 1:30 pm, the property described in
said deed of trust, located at the above address, with improvements thereon
and more particularly described as follows: BEING ALL OF THAT CERTAIN
PROPERTY AS IS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN THE DEED RECORDED
AS INSTRUMENT NO. 201102280 IN WISE COUNTY, VA. TERMS OF SALE: Nei-
ther the Substitute Trustee nor the holder of the note secured by the deed of
trust will deliver possession of the property to the successful bidder. The pur-
chaser at the sale will be required to pay all closing costs. Real estate taxes,
water/sewer fees and other public charges will be prorated as of the date of
sale. The risk of loss or damage to the property passes to the purchaser imme-
diately upon the conclusion of the Substitute Trustee’s sale. Terms: A bidd-
er’s deposit of ten percent (10%)of the sale price or ten percent price (10%)
of the original principal balance of the subject deed of trust, whichever is low-
er, in the form of cash or certified funds payable to the Substitute Trustee
must be present at the time of sale. The balance of the purchase price will be
due within 20 days at the office of the Substitute Trustee. Time is of the es-
sence as to the closing date and the payment of the purchase price. If pay-
ment of the balance does not occur within twenty days of the sale date, the
deposit will be forfeited. Seller shall not be responsible for any costs incur-
red by the purchaser in connection with their purchase or settlement, includ-
ing, without limitation, state and local recording fees, title insurance or re-
search, or any other costs of purchaser’s acquisition. Trustee shall have no
duty to obtain possession for purchaser. All risks of casualty pass to success-
ful bidder at conclusion of bidding. The property and the improvements there-
on will be sold "AS IS" and without representation or warranties of any kind.
The sale is subject to all liens, encumbrances, conditions, easements and re-
strictions, if any, superior to the mentioned deed of trust and lawfully affect-
ing the property. Sale is subject to post-sale confirmation that the borrower
did not file for protection under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code prior to the sale, as
well as to post-sale confirmation and audit of the status of the loan with the
loan servicer including, but not limited to, determination of whether the
borrower(s) entered into any repayment agreement, reinstated or paid off
the loan prior to the sale. In any such event, the sale shall be null and void,
and the Purchaser’s sole remedy, in law or equity, shall be the return of the
Purchaser’s deposit without interest. Additional terms to be announced at
the sale. For more information contact: Abby K. Moynihan, Esq., member of
Surety Trustees, at 301-490-3361 or www.mwc-law.com.

NOTICE OF TRUSTEE’S SALE
OF REAL PROPERTY

LOCATED IN THE CITY OF BRISTOL, VIRGINIA
In execution of a Deed of Trust dated April 16, 2008, recorded in the Circuit

Court Clerk’s Office for the City of Bristol, Virginia, Instrument No. 080000900
(the “Deed of Trust”), default having occurred in the payment of the debt se-
cured by the Deed of Trust, and upon the direction of the holder of the note se-
cured by the Deed of Trust, the undersigned Trustee will offer for sale the
property described below at public auction to the highest bidder at the front
door of the Bristol, Virginia Courthouse, 497 Cumberland Street, Bristol, Virgin-
ia 24201, on Thursday, March 30, 2017, beginning at 11:00 a.m., and continue
as necessary.
The address for the property being sold is 2139 Lee Highway, Bristol, Virgin-

ia 24201, and more particularly described as follows:
SITUATE, LYING AND BEING in the City of Bristol (formerly Washington

County), Virginia, and being more particularly described as follows, to-wit:
BEGINNING at an iron pin in the southernmost right-of-way line of Lee High-

way (U. S. Route 11/19), said iron pin being a common corner for the property
herein described and property of Bayrock Investment Company (Deed Book
245, at page 522); thence along the said right-of-way line of Lee Highway, the
following calls and distances: N 76 deg. 53’ 11” E 50.20 feet to a chiseled “X”
on a sidewalk, S 11 deg. 26’ 44” E 8.20 feet to an iron pin, N 81 deg. 54’ 16” E
202.12 feet to an iron pin, and N 78 deg. 33’ 16” E 128.03 feet to an iron pin at
the intersection of the right-of-way line of Lee Highway and the westernmost
right-of-way line of Old Abingdon Highway; thence along the said right-of-
way line of Old Abingdon Highway, the following calls and distances: S 18
deg. 43’ 07” E 199.78 feet to an iron pin, a curve to the right having a radius of
265.75 feet and an arc distance of 227.96 feet to a point on a rock, S 71 deg.
12’ 56” W 79.84 feet to an iron pin, S 18 deg. 47’ 04” E 20.24 feet to an iron pin,
S 82 deg. 59’ 56” W 20.72 feet in the center of Beaver Creek, S 64 deg. 16’ 03”
W 85.38 feet to an iron pin, and S 69 deg. 39’ 03” W 36.48 feet to an iron pin, a
common corner for the property herein described and Bayrock Investment
Company; thence along the division line between the property herein descri-
bed and property of Bayrock Investment Company, N 11 deg. 40’ 57” W 388.96
feet to the point of BEGINNING, all as shown on a survey of Robert C. Leonard,
CLS No. 1919, dated June 22, 2000 to which reference is here made.
AND BEING the same property conveyed to Panch Tirth, LLC, a Virginia Lim-

ited Liability Company by Deed dated July 14, 2005 from Absolute Hospitality,
LLC, A Virginia Limited Liability Company of record in Book 484, Page 510 at In-
strument No. 0500001870 in the Circuit Court Clerk’s Office for the City of Bris-
tol.
This sale is subject further to all encumbrances, restrictions, rights-of-way,

conditions, easements, and mechanics’ and materialsmen’s liens, if any,
whether of record or not of record, to the extent any of the foregoing apply
and take priority over the lien of the Deed of Trust.
Deposit of ten percent (10%) cash or certified check shall be required from
the successful bidder at the sale, except from the holder of the note. Deposit,
without interest, is applied to the purchase price at settlement. Settlement
will be held on or before 30 days after the sale. Should the successful bidder
default in the purchase, the deposit shall be forfeited and the property shall
be resold at the risk and costs of the defaulting bidder. In the event the Substi-
tute Trustee cannot convey marketable title to the successful bidder, then, in
the Substitute Trustee’s sole discretion, the sale may be rescinded and the
bidder’s sole remedy shall be the refund of the deposit.
The balance of the purchase price shall be in cash or its equivalent. Settle-

ment shall be at the offices of the Substitute Trustee or other mutually
agreed location. The property and any improvements thereon shall be sold in
“as is” condition without any warranties except as to title. The successful bid-
der shall assume all loss or damage to the property from and after the time of
sale.
The successful bidder shall be responsible for all costs of the conveyance,

which shall be by special warranty, including but not limited to the prepara-
tion of the deed and grantor’s tax. The sale is subject to such additional terms
as the Substitute Trustee may announce at the time of sale. The successful
bidder will be required to sign a Memorandum of Sale incorporating all the
terms of the sale.

Pamela D. Loudy, Substitute Trustee
c/o Kenneth D. Hale
The Hale Law Firm

P. O. Box 274
Bristol, TN 37621
423-989-6555

NOTICE OF
PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuant to Section
15.2-1800, et seq., of the Code of
Virginia, 1950, as amended, the
Town of Abingdon will hold a pub-
lic hearing before the members of
the Town Council at 7:30 p.m. on
Monday, April 3, 2017 in the Coun-
cil Chambers of the Town Hall, 133
West Main Street, Abingdon, Virgin-
ia, to receive comments from the
public regarding the construction
by Old Glade Antique Tractor Asso-
ciation of a 30’ x 50’ event/picnic
shelter and fire pit on property
known as "Fairview Historic Site",
located at 908 Hillman Highway,
Abingdon, Virginia, Parcel ID 106-
A-2. Information regarding shelter
and fire pit is available for public in-
spection at the Office of the Town
Manager for the Town of Abingdon,
133 West Main Street, Abingdon,
Virginia.

Gregory W. Kelly, Town Manager



`1234567890-=qwertyuiop[]\asdfghjkl;’zxcvbnm,./`QWERTYUIOP[]ASDFGHJKL;’ZXCVBNM,./~!@#$%^&*()_+`1234567890-=qwertyuiop[]\asdfghjkl;’zxcvbnm,./`QWERTYUIOP[]ASDFGHJKL;’ZXCVBNM,./~!@#$%^&*()Monday, March 27, 2017B10 To advertise in the Bristol Herald Courier call 276-645-2525

Trustee Sales Trustee Sales

LEGAL ADSLEGAL ADS

Meetings and Events

Proposals, Requests For

REAL ESTATE
FOR RENT

Condo, Townhome, Residental Rent

REAL ESTATE
FOR RENT

Houses, Unfurnished

Houses, Unfurnished

Mobile Home, Lots, Rent

RECREATIONRECREATION
ATV, Go Cart, Golf Cart

TRANSPORTATIONTRANSPORTATION
Antique, Classic Vehicles

TRANSPORTATIONTRANSPORTATION
Auto for Sale

Automotive-Wanted

Call to Advertise in the Classifieds!

Call to Advertise in
the Classifieds!

Sell your stuff and make some
fast cash!

BEAUTIFUL, SPACIOUS, FAMILY
FRIENDLY - HUNTER HILLS .
2 BR, 2.5 BA, Total Renovation
with Custom Upgrades, Must

See to Appreciate.
$750/mo. + $750 Deposit.
Call/Text 423-383-2828

BEAUTIFUL! SPACIOUS!
HUNTER HILLS, BRISTOL, TN.
2 bedrooms, 2.5 baths, garage.
No pets. $725/month plus
deposit. 423-383-4000

BLOUNTVILLE CONDO FOR RENT
2 BDRM, 2 BA. W/D INCLUDED,
W/GARAGE. $750 MO. PLUS SEC.
DEP. NO PETS. 423-220-9408.

Bristol, VA - Condo for Rent - Exit 5,
I81 - Carriage Hill - Furnished, 2 br,
1.5 ba. No pets. $595 + deposit. OR
sell for $49,000. Call (276) 623-1485

BRTN - For Rent 1 Level Townhouse,
Newer Const, 2 Master Bedrooms, 2
Del. Bathrooms, All New Kitchen

Appl, 2 Car Garage, $1000 / Mo in Ad-
vance. Ref Req. Call - 423-361-5118

or 423-989-3521

BRVA Townhouse (exit 5 area).
Excellent Condition - 2BR, 1.5BA.
W/D hookup, dishwasher,
trash pickup included.
No pets/smoking.
$600/mo + deposit.
423-764-2673

Exit 7- BRVA
847 Old Airport Rd. Newly remod-
eled 2 BR/2 Bath twnhs. No pets.
$675/mo +dep 276-591-8241

BIDS WANTED
Sealed bids will be received by the
Purchasing Department of the City
of Bristol, Tennessee; 801 Ander-
son Street; Room 204; Bristol, TN
37620 until April 18, 2017 at 2:00
p.m., for the purchase of the follow-
ing:

BID 17014
CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION
PIPE INSPECTION EQUIPMENT

Bid forms and specifications are
available on the Internet at www.b
ristoltn.org or you may contact the
Purchasing Department at (423)
989-5528. The City reserves the
right to reject any and all bids re-
ceived and to waive informalities
on all or any part of any bid which
may be deemed to be in the best in-
terests of the City. Certified Disad-
vantaged Business Enterprises are
encouraged to submit bids.

*PRICES DO NOT INCLUDE SALES TAX,TITLE FEE OR TAGS • PRICES DO NOT INCLUDE $389 PROCESSING FEE • SALE END DATE MARCH 31, 2017

2007 CHEVY SILVERADO 1500 REG CAB
#12360A

2007 HONDA ODYSSEY EXL
#12412A

13 CHEVY TAHOE LTZ 4X4 LIKE NEW
42,000 MILES. #7209A

2005 CHEVY 1500 4X4
EXT CAB #7112AA

2015 SCION FRS
21,000 MILES #12393

2014 JEEP PATRIOT FWD
51,000 MILES #12480

2016 CHEVY SUBURBAN 4X4
LOADED, 45,000 MILES #12453

2012 HONDA CRV EX AWD
51,000 MILES #12487

SALE
$7,995

SALE
$8,995

SALE
$42,995

SALE
$10,995

SALE
$21,995

SALE
$13,995

SALE
$45,995

SALE
$18,995

PIONEER CHEVROLET
& The Bologna guys are Back WiTh

CHECK US OUT ON FACEBOOK

1135 WEST MAIN ST. • ABINGDON,VA • EXIT OFF I-81

(276) 628-2101 • www.pioneerchevy.com

#12300 15 DODGE GRAND CARAVAN SXT, 39,000 MILES ............... SALE PRICE $18,995
#7355A 15 BMW 335 LIKE BRAND NEW!! 7,000 MILES............................. SALE PRICE $39,995
#12495 14 CHEVY 1500 DOUBLE CAB 4X4 43,000 MILES ............ SALE PRICE $25,995
#7378A 08 CHEVY AVALANCHE 4X4 ONLY 36,000 MILES ................. SALE PRICE $26,995
#12500A 11 CHEVY MALIBU.............................................................. SALE PRICE $8,995
#00055SS 05 FORD EXPEDITION XLT 4X4 99,000 MILES ..................... SALE PRICE $8,995
#0013SS 01 GMC SONOMA EXT CAB 4X4 66,000 MILES ................... SALE PRICE $9,995
#12512 14 NISSAN PATHFINDER 4X4 48,000 MILES ..................... SALE PRICE $23,995

#12516 15 CHEVY EQUINOX FWD 35,000 MILES............................ SALE PRICE $17,995
#7244AA 09 JEEP GRAND CHEROKEE LAREDO 4X4 ................... SALE PRICE $6,995
#12515A 12 CHEVY CAPTIVA SPORT LTZ AWD ......................... SALE PRICE $14,995
#12522 15 FORD TRANSIT 15 PASSENGER VAN 27,000 MILES................ SALE PRICE $25,995
#12524 16 CHEVY IMPALA 38,000 MILES......................................... SALE PRICE $16,995
#7275A 08 NISSAN 350Z CONVERTIBLE 56,000 MILES................. SALE PRICE $16,995
#7330AA 12 CHEVY SUBURBAN LT 4X4 NICE ............................... SALE PRICE $27,900
#12528 14 SUBARU CROSSTREK 37,000 MILES............................. SALE PRICE $21,995
#12529 16 CHEVY TRAX AWD 31,000 MILES ................................... SALE PRICE $21,995

March madness savings!

2013 CHEVY VOLT
37,000 MILES

#7345
WAS $19,995

NOW
ONLY

$16,500

DEAL OF THE WEEK!

$2000 REDUCTION IN PRICE

908 Reedy Creek Rd, BRTN
3BR, 2BA, stove / refrigerator /
dishwasher furnished. Central
H/A, basement, one car garage,
hardwood floors thru out.
Ideal location between Kprt
Lowes and Exit 7 Lowes, close
to hospital and interstate.
No Pets. $750 mo.
Also another 3 Bdrm,

everything is the same except
no bsmt/garage. $700 mo

423-217-1109

Abingdon, VA - 3BR, 2BA,
Central H&A, Basement and
Kitchen appliances. $750/mo
+ Dep. No Pets / Smoking.
276-628-7776 or
276-274-9743.

Multiple Houses and
Townhouses available for
rent in Bristol TN, VA and

Abingdon VA.
$725 to $925 Range.
Call Andrew Neese
(Owner is an agent)

276/619-1187 for details or
visit www.cgprentals.com/

available-rentals

NOTICE OF
PUBLIC HEARING

Pursuant to Section
15.2-1800, et seq., of the Code of
Virginia, 1950, as amended, the
Town of Abingdon will hold a pub-
lic hearing before the members of
the Town Council at 7:30 p.m. on
Monday, April 3, 2017 in the Coun-
cil Chambers of the Town Hall, 133
West Main Street, Abingdon, Virgin-
ia, to receive comments from the
public regarding the construction
by Old Glade Antique Tractor Asso-
ciation of a 30’ x 50’ event/picnic
shelter and fire pit on property
known as "Fairview Historic Site",
located at 908 Hillman Highway,
Abingdon, Virginia, Parcel ID 106-
A-2. Information regarding shelter
and fire pit is available for public in-
spection at the Office of the Town
Manager for the Town of Abingdon,
133 West Main Street, Abingdon,
Virginia.

Gregory W. Kelly, Town Manager

Nice, clean 2BR, 1BA.
BRVA.

$700/mo. + deposit.
276-591-5242

MOBILE HOME LOT FOR RENT
IN ABINGDON @ Rolling Hills
Retirement Park- $145 mo Back-
ground checks reqd. 276-492-
6727

TRUSTEE’S SALE OF
356 DAW RD, DORAN, VA 24612

Pursuant to the terms of a certain 1 Deed of Trust, in the original
principal amount of $78,958.00, dated September 15, 2008, and recorded in the
Clerk’s Office of the Circuit Court of Tazewell, Virginia (the "Clerk’s Office"),
in Deed Book 1038 at Page 0518 as Instrument Number 080004360, default hav-
ing been made in the payment of the note thereby secured, the undersigned
Sole Acting Substitute Trustees, pursuant to the request of the holder of the
Note thereby secured, will offer for sale at public auction outside of the
Tazewell Circuit Court, located at 101 East Main Street, Tazewell, VA 24651 on
April 7, 2017 at 01:00 PM, the property briefly described as 356 DAW RD,
DORAN, VA 24612, and more particularly described in said Deed of Trust as
follows:

All that certain lot or parcel of land situate near Raven in the Malden Spring
Magisterial District of Tazewell County, Virginia, being the northern portion
of Lot No. 1 as shown and described on that certain map or plat entitled "MAP
SHOWING LANDS OF MALISSA DICKENSON ESTATE DIVIDED TAZEWELL CO.,
VA.", which said map or plat is of record in the Office of the Clerk of the Cir-
cuit Court of Tazewell County, Virginia, and which said portion of said Lot No,
1 being the herein conveyed is more particularly bounded and described as
follows:
BEGINNING at an iron pin situate in the western boundary of Virginia Secon-
dary Route 629, being the northeastern corner of Lot No. 1 of the Malissa
Dickenson Estate; thence with the western boundary of said Route 629 S. 40°
54‘ 30" W. 86.31 feet to an iron pin; thence leaving Route 629 and with a line
through Lot No. 1 N. 48° 22‘ 10" W. 173.47 feet to an iron pin situate N. 39° 53‘
E. 92.25 feet from a large white oak; thence from said point N. 39° 53‘ E. 86.41
feet to a post; thence S. 48° 21‘ E. 175.02 feet to the point of BEGINNING, con-
taining 0.345 acres, as shown and described on that certain map or plat enti-
tled "PLAT SHOWING SURVEY FOR LARRY Et CAROL SIZEMORE" dated May
19, 1993, which said map or plat is found in Plat Book 35, page 48, Plat Card#
7199, with improvements thereon.

TERMS OF SALE: Cash. A ten percent (10%) bidder’s deposit in
cash or certified check payable to the Trustee(s) shall be required of the suc-
cessful bidder at the time of sale before the bidding will be closed; settlement
must be made within twenty (20) days from the date of sale or property to be
resold at cost of defaulting purchaser. All costs of conveyancing, examination
of title, recording charges, etc. will be at cost of purchaser. Neither the Sub-
stitute Trustees, nor any other party guarantees or covenants to deliver, or in
any way, to obtain possession of the premises for any third party purchaser.
Additional terms may be announced at the time of sale. Sale will also be sub-
ject to additional terms contained in the Memorandum of Sale to be executed
by the successful bidder upon purchase.

Commonwealth Asset Services, LLC
Sole Acting Substitute Trustees

This communication is from a debt collector. This is an attempt to collect a
debt and any information obtained will be used for that purpose.

FOR INFORMATION CONTACT:
Commonwealth Asset Services, LLC
281 Independence Boulevard, Pembroke One Building, 5th Floor,
Virginia Beach, VA 23462
www.sykesbourdon.com
(757) 965-5097 BETWEEN HOURS OF 9:00 A.M. and 11:00 A.M. ONLY
Our Case No: CA17-190044-1

2012 John Deer Gator 855D.
Deisel, 84 hrs. windshield,
wench, hydrolic dump bed &

signal lights. $9000.
276-328-0964. Leave message.

WANTED
1946-75 Chevy convertible.
1946-75 GM convertible.

1970-76 Chevy or GM 2 door.
1967-73 Camaro.

Any condition. Fast Cash!
Call: 330-722-5835

2000 CHEVROLET BLAZER
4 WHEEL DR $1500,
Call: 276-356-9983

2015 Subaru Forester AWD, Black Ext /
Int, Loaded, 8K Miles, Excellent Condi-
tion. $24,000. Call 276-880-0151

$$$ CASH $$$
Wanted to buy cars & trucks
for parts. Running, wrecked

or junk! 423-335-0941

We pay top dollar$ for
Junk Cars, & Trucks.
Fast Free Pkup.
Call: 276-356-2889

PETSPETS
Dogs

Cats

Stay Informed.

Subscribe
Today!
Keep Up With

The Latest News!

Dallas, 2 yrs old. Male lab mix.
NEUTERED. Up to date on vacci-
nations. Dog and kid friendly,
very polite & well mannered.
Dallas enjoys sitting by your
side to be loved on. Contact
SBK Animal Center, 380
Masengill Road, Blountville, TN
423 279 2741

Goldie, 9 mos old female.
SPAYED, rabies vaccinated.
Butterscotch stripes, dark &
light all over. Gorgeous mark-
ings. Rings around the tail,
legs and a single strip of dark
coloring down the back to the
tip of the tail. She will follow
you around for attention, or sit
quietly in her little bed. Com-
fortable around dogs and cats.
Indoor only. Call foster home
for more info 423-968-9050

Sampson is just about as per-
fect as one can get when you
are a cat. Laid back, enjoys be-
ing petted, has manners &
likes people. Sampson is 5 yrs
old, unaltered male, up to date
on shots minus his rabies.?
Contact SBK Animal Center,
380 Masengill Road,
Blountville, TN. 423/279-2741



 

TOWN OF ABINGDON, VI RGINIA 

INTEROFFICE MEMORAND UM 

TO: CECILE ROSENBAUM, KIM KINGSLEY 

FROM: SEAN TAYLOR 

SUBJECT: EVENT SHELTER FOR FAIRVIEW 

DATE: 2/27/2017 

CC: GREG KELLY  

The Old Glade Antique Tractor Association (OGATA) is seeking approval from the Town 
Council to Construct a Event/Picnic Shelter at the Fairview Historic site. Funds for the construction 
of the shelter have been raised by the Fairview Foundation and OGATA.  

Plans call for the shelter to be 30' x 50' with wood post set on concrete foundation. Each end 
gable will be clad in saw milled lumber in the board and batton style. Metal roofing will be installed 
to match the existing roofing patterns at the historic site.  

After the shelter is constructed members of OGATA plan to construct a fire pit to be used in 
the molasses making process. The fire pit will also be constructed in a manner as to make it useful 
for barbequing.  

Images provided below give an example of the shelter and fire pit OGATA plans to construct.  

 

 





Asphalt Resurfacing Work- FY 2016-2017 March 23, 2017 @ 2:00 PM

Bidder Licensed in Addendum Bid Bond Total Bid
Virginia? Acknowledged? Received?

W-L Construction and Paving, Inc. √ √ √ $334,987.15

Rogers Group, Inc. √ √ √ $340,000.10

N/A $0.00

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

FY 2016-2017 Budgeted Amount Remaining $350,000.00

Town of Abingdon
Department of Public Works

Tabulation of Received Bids

Department Head Recommendation:  Award contract to W-L Construction and Paving, Inc for $334,987.15



TABULATION OF BIDS RECEIVED FOR:
Asphalt Bid Estimate FY 16-17
March 23, 2017

BID
ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE

1 SM-9.5 A (Non-polishing) 1,745 Ton 67.31$            117,455.95$         72.02$            125,674.90$         -$                      
2 SM-9.5 AL (Limestone Agg) 0 Ton -$                      -$                      -$                      
3 SM-12.5 E (Non-Polishing) 1950 Ton 79.90$            155,805.00$         82.42$            160,719.00$         -$                      
4 Pavement Planing (0-2" depth) 7,000 SY 4.22$              29,540.00$           3.06$              21,420.00$           -$                      
5 Pavement Planing (2"- 4" depth) 0 SY -$                      -$                      -$                      
6 4" Pavement Marking, VDOT Type B, Class 1 40,360 Lf 0.62$              25,023.20$           0.62$              25,023.20$           -$                      
7 12" Pavement Marking, VDOT Type B, Class 1 544 Lf 5.00$              2,720.00$             5.00$              2,720.00$             -$                      
8 24" Pavement Marking, VDOT Type B, Class 1 43 Lf 9.00$              387.00$                 9.00$              387.00$                 -$                      
9 Arrow Symbol Pave. Mark. VDOT Type B, Class 1 7 Ea 75.00$            525.00$                 75.00$            525.00$                 -$                      

10 Temporary 4" Pavement Marking, VDOT Type A 24425 Lf 0.12$              2,931.00$             0.12$              2,931.00$             -$                      
11 Temporary Single Arrow Pave. Marking, VDOT Type A 5 Ea 20.00$            100.00$                 20.00$            100.00$                 -$                      
12 18" Yield Symbol , VDOT Type B, Class 1 5 Ea 100.00$          500.00$                 100.00$          500.00$                 -$                      

-$                      -$                      -$                      
-$                      -$                      -$                      

TOTAL $334,987.15 $340,000.10 $0.00

Tabulated By:                                                                                    
Michael Surrett                                                                           
Town of Abingdon

Town of Abingdon
Department of Public Works

1ST LOW BIDDER 2ND LOW BIDDER 3RD LOW BIDDER
W-L Construction and Paving, Inc Rogers Group, Inc



1 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT  
by and between 

THE TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 
and 

ABINGDON MAIN STREET, INC. 
 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is entered into and executed by the Town of 

Abingdon, a Municipal Corporation organized pursuant to the Code of Virginia, 
1950, as amended  (hereinafter referred to as "Town") and Abingdon Main 

Street, Inc., a non-stock Corporation organized pursuant to the provisions of 
Chapter 10 of Title 13.1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended (hereinafter 

referred to as  "AMS").  This Agreement is made in accordance with the formal 
action taken by the Abingdon Town Council at its regular meeting on April 3, 

2017 and in the interest of developing and supporting the revitalization of the 

historic business district of Abingdon, Virginia.  This Memorandum of 
Agreement is an extension and modification of the original Memorandum of 

Agreement dated May 5, 2008 between the town of Abingdon and Abingdon 
Main Street.  Such revitalization is sought to be accomplished through the 

establishment of AMS, an affiliate of the statewide program, Virginia Main 
Street Communities.   

 
WHEREAS, it is hereby understood and agreed that the Town, as 

represented by  its governing Council and Town Manager,  and AMS, 
represented by its designated officer,  have agreed to certain provisions to be 

honored between the parties. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, 
the parties agree as follows:  

 

1. The Town hereby agrees to support the aforementioned program by 
continuing to be a financial partner, thereby extending financial support 

for and during a two (2) year period, beginning July 1, 2017 and 
extending to no later than June 30, 2019, subject to favorable 

evaluation, desirable outcome of program objectives, and at the 
discretion of the Town.  

  
2. It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that the Town's annual 

financial support shall be awarded through its fiscal budget and only if 
AMS secures additional financial support, in advance,  from sources 

outside the government of the Town of Abingdon in an amount which 
equals or exceeds that which the Town agrees to fund herein.  

  



2 

 

3. The parties to this Agreement understand that the matching obligation 

described herein is in effect and applicable separately for each of the 
fiscal years, '2017 – '2019, and the individual budgets applicable 

thereto. 
 

4. The Town agrees to provide office space (rent-free), and the use of 
furnishings, computer and copy equipment for the Executive Director of 

AMS for one (1) year, beginning July 1, 2017.  The specific  area to be 
assigned shall be at the sole discretion of the Town Manager or his 

designee,  and shall be facilitated through the sharing of  that which 
exists or is available within the offices and facilities of the Abingdon 

Tourism Department.  The Town further acknowledges that the 
aforementioned office space rent-free arrangement shall be open to 

consideration for a possible one (1)-year extension, subject to the 
favorable evaluation of the program and availability of adequate and 

appropriate space,  at the sole discretion of the Town Manager or his 

designee. 
 

5. The Town further agrees to support and facilitate the operations of AMS  
by providing assistance to its Executive Director through allowing  use 

of its part-time employees within the Tourism Department, subject to 
the availability of  part-time employees  having completed prior 

departmental assignments and/or responsibilities. 
 

6.  Abingdon Main Street agrees to provide the services of processing, 
documenting and distributing the salary and benefits of its Executive 

Director of AMS and any of its employee that it may hire.  The town shall 
in no way be responsible to facilitate any of these services during the 

course of this agreement. through the Town's office network, support 
staff and systems.    

 

7. In consideration of Town's support, AMS hereby agrees to the following 
terms: 

 To provide the town with its projected budget on an annual basis 
to be delivered to the Office of the Town Manager no later than 

March 1st of each year thereby allowing for consideration and 
evaluation and in regard to the town’s fiscal budget projection, 

fiscal year observed July 1 through June 30 of the following 
year; 

 To hold regular business hours within the town of Abingdon and 
to meet regularly with existing and future downtown business 

owners to understand their needs and to provide them with what 
assistance and services AMS has to offer them; 



3 

 

 To hold regular meetings known as “Main Street After 5 pm” with 

existing and future business owners and to provide the town 
manager and the Community Development Director for the town 

of Abingdon with the dates and locations of said meetings; 
 To attend all regular Town Council meetings and Tourism 

Advisory Committee meetings for the town of Abingdon; 
 To provide Town Council a written monthly report on fundraising 

efforts and ongoing and completed projects of AMS, said report 
being due by the last week of the month; 

 To present a quarterly report in person to the Abingdon Town 
Council and its citizens in attendance at a regularly convened 

Council meeting; 
 To meet monthly with the Town Manager and discuss successes, 

proposals, and challenges; 
 To work in unison with the town’s Community Development 

Coordinator on downtown revitalization efforts and community 

events. 
 To allow the Town Manager or his designee the opportunity any 

AMS board meetings or other meetings that the director may 
have throughout the year. 

 
 

8. AMS hereby agrees to be available for presentation of annual financial 
and activity reports to Council as deemed desirable by the Town 

Manager. 
 

This agreement may be revised by an amendment in writing adopted by  
the Town Council and Board of Directors of Abingdon Main Street, Inc. 

 
The parties to this Agreement hereby acknowledge that Abingdon Main  

Street, Inc. and the Town of Abingdon are separate entities.  The corporate 

employee(s) of  Abingdon Main Street, Inc. work at the full pleasure of its 
Board of Directors.  Accordingly, AMS acknowledges that it is responsible for 

procuring and maintaining separate insurance coverage for its employee(s) 
and any/all property owned by its corporate entity.   

 
 

 
 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute this agreement. 
 

 



4 

 

By_______________________________  ________________ 

  Town Manager             Date 
       Town of Abingdon 

 
 

By_______________________________  ________________ 
               President, AMS              Date 

  
              

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, to wit: 

The foregoing Memorandum of Agreement was acknowledged before me 
this the ___ day of ___________, 2017 by Gregory Kelly, Town Manager for 

the Town of Abingdon, Virginia. 
 

Notary Public _____________________ 

 
My commission expires:  _________________________ 

 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON, to wit: 

The foregoing Memorandum of Agreement was acknowledged before me 
this the ___ day of _______________, 2017, by __________, President for 

Abingdon Main Street, Inc. 
 

Notary Public _____________________ 
 

My commission expires:  _________________________ 



















Abingdon Town Council 

Annual Arborist Report 

April 3, 2017 
 

 

Highlights of Year 2016 

 

1. Tree City USA:  15 Years: Arbor Day Celebration at E. B. Stanley Middle School 

 

 

 

2. Tree plantings: Coomes Rec. Center, Veterans Memorial Park, Munchkin Park, Valley Street, Russell 

Road 

 

 

 

3. Abingdon Tree Initiative, Phase 4:  over 670 properties (NW section of town) 

 

 

 

4. VA Trees for Clean Water Grant:  riparian plantings @ Muster Grounds 

 

 

 

5.  Emerald Ash Borer treatments for ash trees on public property 

 

 

 

6. Speaking engagements: Washington County Master Gardeners, VA Tech Departments of Forestry and 

Horticulture, Hungry Mother State Park. 

 

 

 

7. Continued association with Town of Marion, Trees Virginia Board of Directors, MAC-ISA, VA Big 

Tree Program 

 

 

 

8. Assisted numerous town property owners in the care of private trees. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Objectives and Goals for 2016 

 
1. Tree City USA:  Year 16 

 

2.  Abingdon Tree Initiative Phase 5 (last section of town before starting over) 

 

3. New plantings:  Coomes Rec. Center, Veterans Park, Valley Street, sites where trees have been removed 

 

4. Implementation of grant @ Muster Grounds 

 

5. Community Orchard:  “A” Street 

 

6. VA Big Tree Program 

 

7. Bonnie Appleton Scholarship 

 

8. Trees Virginia, MAC-ISA, Town of Marion 

 

9. ISA International Conference:  late July-early August:  National Harbor @ Washington, DC. 

 

10. Continue to be available to town residents. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

**Arbor Day Celebration** 

Abingdon Elementary School 

Thursday, April 13, 2016.  Time:  1:30 PM 











TOURISM ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

BYLAWS 

 

ARTICLE I – NAME 

The Tourism Advisory Committee of Abingdon (TAC or Advisory Committee) is an advisory 

body created by the Abingdon Town Council in 1991. 

ARTICLE II – AUTHORITY  

Section 1 

The TAC operates under the authority delegated to municipalities under Title 15.2, Chapter 22, 

Code of Virginia (1950), as amended. 

Section 1.2 

The authority for the TAC was established on November 4, 1991 by a motion of the Abingdon 

Town Council.   

ARTICLE III – PURPOSE AND DUTIES 

Section 1 – Duties and General Responsibilities 

The Abingdon Town Council’s creation of a Tourism Advisory Committee is to pursue the 

following purposes and duties: 

1. Encourage and support the goals and objectives of the town. 

2. Provide an official channel of input on tourism issues from attractions and businesses to 

the office of tourism, town management and the town council. 

3. Provide resources and support to the director of tourism by sharing information and 

experiences on tourism issues. 

4. Cultivate cooperative efforts in advertising, publicity, research and other aspects of the 

promotion of tourism. 

5. Coordinate tourism development with other agencies in order to avoid duplication of 

efforts. 

Section 2 – Financial Duties and Responsibilities 

a) The tourism advisory committee shall have no authority to enter into any contract or 

incur any obligation binding the town. 

b) The committee shall assist the director of tourism in development and preparation of an 

annual budget for the division to be submitted to the town manager and subsequently to 

the town council, at the time designated by the town manager. 



Section 3 – Planning Duties and Responsibilities 

The tourism advisory committee shall investigate and determine the needs and interests of the 

community for tourism programs and facilities and recommend a tourism program to meet those 

needs. 

ARTICLE IV – LOCAL COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 

Section 1 – Composition, salaries and expenses 

The TAC shall be composed of up to fifteen (15) members. The members shall receive no salary, 

or other compensation for their services. Ex officio members are afforded the same rights as 

other members, including debate, making formal motions and voting. REMOVE 

1) One representative of the hotel-motel industry 

2) One representative of the bed and breakfast industry 

3) One representative of the attractions industry 

4) One representative of the restaurant industry 

5) One representative from the historic sites or museum industry 

6) One representative from the retail or downtown merchant industry 

7) One representative from the arts and culture industry 

8) One representative from Heartwood  REMOVE 

9) One representative from Virginia Higher Education Center CHANGE – higher education 

field 

10) At large 

11) At large 

12) At large 

Section 2 – Ex officio members 

1) Town Council or representative 

2) Chamber of Commerce or representative 

3) Abingdon Main Street or representative 

4) Washington County Board of Supervisors or representative - ADD 

Section 3 – Appointment and terms of members and vacancies 

a) The members of the tourism advisory committee shall be appointed by the Abingdon 

Town Council.  The Town Council shall seek out and appoint persons with a high degree 

of interest, capacity and objectivity. 

b) The terms of office for the members of the tourism advisory committee shall be for three 

years or until their successors are appointed and qualified; the term of three members 

shall expire annually thereafter. Members are eligible to serve two consecutive three year 

terms and can be reappointed to the committee by the Abingdon Town Council. 



c) Vacancies in such committee occurring otherwise than by expiration of the term shall be 

filled by the council for the remainder of the unexpired term. New members filling an un-

expired term shall be eligible for two full three year terms, without interruption. 

ARTICLE V – OFFICERS AND ELECTIONS 

The tourism advisory committee shall elect a Chairman for the committee annually in July. The 

term of the Chairman shall be one year. 

The following officers of the tourism advisory committee shall be elected by the membership of 

the TAC from among the membership of the TAC: (1) Vice Chair; and (2) Secretary whose 

duties shall reflect common usages of Roberts Rules of Order. 

Elections of officers shall be held annually at the July meeting of the TAC. Terms of each office 

shall be one year. Nominations will be made from the floor. 

ARTICLE VI – COMMITTEES 

The Chair may from time to time, with the consent of the TAC, recommend the establishment of 

special committees, including ad hoc committees, to study subjects of particular concern to the 

TAC and report their findings and recommendations to the TAC. Special Committee chairs must 

be appointed from among the members of the TAC. Special Committees shall consist of no 

fewer than two (2) TAC members and may include non-TAC members. All special committees 

shall take minutes to be presented at the next scheduled TAC meeting for all members to review.  

ARTICLE VII – MEETINGS OF THE ADVISORY BOARD 

Section 1 – Time and Place 

Regular monthly meetings of the tourism advisory committee shall be held at 3:00 p.m. on the 1st 

Tuesday of the month at a Town-owned location determined by the Chair or another suitable 

public meeting space as determined by a majority vote of the TAC. Special meeting of the TAC 

may be called by the TAC Chair or 50% of TAC members provided that written or electronic 

notice to all members has been given five days in advance.  Meetings of special committees will 

be scheduled and convened at the discretion of the appropriate committee chair. 

All meetings of the tourism advisory committee shall be open to the public and records of the 

TAC shall be a public record as required by the Virginia Freedom of Information Act.  The 

committee may meet in closed session only for the purposes stated in that Act.  

Section 2 – Quorum 

A majority of all members shall constitute a quorum.  

 



Section 3 – Voting 

In making any recommendation, adopting any plan, or approving any proposal, or position, 

action shall be taken by a majority vote of all members present.  All votes of the TAC shall be 

made a matter of public record and shall be reflected in the minutes. 

Section 4 – Minutes 

Minutes of all regular or special sessions of the TAC shall be recorded and maintained in the 

Department of Tourism as a permanent record of TAC activities. 

Section 5 – Attendance at Meetings 

Any member of the TAC who shall fail to attend three (3) consecutive meetings may be 

considered to have resigned. The Chair shall, at his or her discretion, declare that a vacancy 

exists and proceed to have it filled by appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term in the 

manner provided for in Article IV, Section 3 of these Bylaws. 

ARTICLE VIII – AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS 

Any proposed amendment to these Bylaws shall be presented in writing to the members of the 

TAC at a regularly scheduled meeting and shall not be subject to a vote until the next regularly 

scheduled TAC meeting. Approval by a majority of the members of the TAC shall be required to 

recommend any proposed amendment of the Bylaws to the Town Council. Modifications to the 

bylaws must be reviewed and approved by the Town Council.  The Town Council has sole 

authority to approve modifications to the Tourism Advisory Committee bylaws. 

ARTICLE IX – SEVERABILITY 

In the event any provision or provisions of these Bylaws shall be determined to be invalid, void 

or unenforceable, such determination shall not render invalid, void or unenforceable any other 

provision here of the adopted Bylaws. 

ARTICLE XI – EFFECTIVE DATE 

These Bylaws become effective when adopted by the Town Council of Abingdon. 

Approved this _____ day of ______________, 20___. 

 

 



 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA 

DESIGNATING APRIL 3RD THROUGH 7TH, 2017 AS  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT EDUCATION WEEK 

 

WHEREAS, since the colonial period, the Commonwealth of Virginia has closely held 

the institutions of local government; and  

WHEREAS, local governments throughout the Commonwealth provide valuable services 

to the citizens of the communities they serve; and  

WHEREAS, citizen services such as law enforcement, public health and safety, 

recreational opportunities, and educating local children, are most often delivered at the local level; 

and  

WHEREAS, in recognition of the work performed by local governments, the Virginia 

General Assembly, on February 29, 2012, designated the first week of April as Local Government 

Education Week in Virginia; and  

WHEREAS, April 2, 1908 was the creation of the Council-Manager form of government 

in the City of Staunton, Virginia thereby making the first week of April appropriate for this 

designation.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the Town of Abingdon, 

Virginia that April 3rd through 7th 2017 is hereby designated as Local Government Education 

Week; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVES that the Council of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia and 

the Washington County, Virginia School Board will partner to promote the civic education and 

engagement in an effort to educate citizens about their local government, strengthen the sense of 

community, and engage the next generation of local government managers.  

 

 



 

TOWN OF ABINGDON, VIRGINIA  

 

 

By: _____________________________  

Mayor  

 

 

By: ______________________________  

Town Manager  

 

 

The undersigned Clerk of the Town of Abingdon, Virginia (the “Town”), hereby certifies 

that the foregoing constitutes a true and correct copy of a resolution duly adopted at a meeting of 

the Council held on April 3, 2017.  I hereby further certify that such meeting was a regularly 

scheduled meeting and that, during the consideration of this resolution, a quorum was present.   I 

further certify that the minutes of such meeting reflect the attendance of the members and the 

voting on the foregoing resolution was as follows: 

 

 

 

MEMBERS ATTENANCE VOTE 

Cathy Lowe, Mayor   

Richard E. Humphreys, Vice 

Mayor 

  

Robert M. Howard   

Wayne Craig   

Cindy Patterson   

 

 Witness my hand and seal of the Town of Abingdon as of April ____, 2017. 

 

 

 

 

(SEAL)      ____________________________________ 

       Clerk, Town of Abingdon 



 

 

TOWN OF ABINGDON 

BOARD OF BUILDINGS CODE APPEALS 
CURRENT MEMBERS  

ADDRESSES & PHONE NUMBERS 

APPOINTMENT DATES & EXPIRATION 

5 YEAR TERMS 

Staff Contact:  Marion Watts, Building Official 

Phone Number:  276-628-3167 

Meets the 3rd Thursday in March and September at noon at the Small Business Incubator 

Updated:   March 3, 2015 

 

 

Name Address Phone # Appointment 

Date 

Term 

Expiration 

Date 

Eligible 

for 

Another 

Term 

Charlie Day P.O. Box 650 

Abingdon VA 

24212 

276-628-5123 
beesonarchts@embarqmail.com 
 

March 1, 2010 

Reappt. March, 

2015 

March 1, 2020 

 

No 

Bob Baker 26366 Biscay 

Drive 

Abingdon VA 

24211 

276-628-6704 
bbaker2030@centurylink.net 

March 1, 2010 

Reappt March, 

2015 

March 1, 2020 No 

 

John 

McCormick 

290 Bogey 

Drive 

Abingdon, VA 

24211 

276-628-1487 April 6, 2009 

(Reappt 

4/2014) 

April 1, 2019 Yes 

Nick Griffith 18219 

Woodland Hills 

Rd 

Abingdon VA 

24210 

 

276-739-0040 

 

April 6, 2009 

(Reappt 

4/2014) 

April 1, 2019 Yes 

Chris Dye 23240 

Browning Road 

Abingdon VA 

24211 

 

276-676-2035 
chrisdye@centurylink.net 
 

April 6, 2009 

(Reappt 

4/2014) 

April 1, 2019 Yes 

Tandy 

Rasnake 

20157 

Woodland Hills 

Road, 

Abingdon, VA 

24210 

276-628-3237 March 6, 2012 March 6, 2017 Yes 

Michael Scott 18071 Jeb 

Stuart Highway 

Abingdon, VA 

24211 

276-623-0047 March 6, 2012 March 6, 2017 Yes 

 
 

mailto:beesonarchts@embarqmail.com
mailto:bbaker2030@centurylink.net
mailto:chrisdye@centurylink.net


TOWN OF ABINGDON 

TOURISM ADVISORY COMMISSION 
CURRENT MEMBERS & ENTITY REPRESENTED 

APPOINTMENT & EXPIRATION DATES 

3-YEAR TERMS 

1st Tuesday each month at 3pm. Arthur Campbell Room 

Staff Contact:  Kevin Costello, Executive Director for Tourism 

Phone Number:  276-676-2282 

Updated:  December, 2016 

 

Name Entity 

Represente

d 

Address Phone # Appointment 

Date 

Term Expiration 

Date 

Elig

ible 

for 

An

oth

er 

Ter

m 

Kathleen 

Bundy 

Barter 

Theatre 

133 West Main 

Street 

Abingdon, VA 

24210 

276-628-2281 

communication@b

artertheatre.com 

 

December 7, 

2009 

(3-year term) 

December 7, 2015 

(Reappt Jan. 2013) 

No 

 

 Sean Webb VA Higher 

Ed Center 

P.O. Box 1987 

Abingdon, 

Virginia 24212 

276-619-4380 

swebb@swcenter.e

du  

February 1, 2010 

(Reappt 8/13) 

(3-year term) 

August 5, 2016 

No 

Cathy Lowe 

 

Council 

Member 

P O Box 1165 

Abingdon, VA 

24212-1165 

276-628.4342 January 7, 2013 (3-year term) 

January 7, 2016 

Yes 

Rick 

Humphreys, 

Alternate 

Council 

Member 

148 Crestview 

Drive 

Abingdon, VA  

24210 

276.608.3465 January 7, 2013 (3 year term) 

January 7, 2016 

Yes 

Janice 

Cowan 

Summerfiel

d Inn, B&B 

101 Valley 

Street, NW 

Abingdon, VA 

24210 

276-628-9505 

jc@bvu.net 

 

 

January, 2015 (3 year term) 

January, 2018 

Yes 

Janet 

Woolwine 

A Likely 

Yarn and 

Renaissance 

Projects 

185 Crestview 

Drive 

Abingdon VA 

24210 

276-628-8433 

alikelyyarn@yaho

o.com 

jiwoolwine@yaho

o.com 

November 4, 

2013 to fill 

unexpired term 

of Vickye Hall 

(3-year term) 

June 2, 2017 

 

Yes 

 

Susanne Lay 

Ex-Officio  

 

Chamber of 

Commerce 

179 East Main 

Street 

Abingdon, VA 

24210 

276-628-8141 

chamber@eva.org 

 

  Con

tinu

al 

Joel Jerkins J&J 

Entertainme

nt Group 

115 Charwood 

Drive 

Abingdon, VA 

24210 

276-525-4999 

joel.jerkins@yaho

o.com 

 

August 2, 2014 (3-year term) 

August 1, 2017 

Yes 

Amy Ball 

Braswell 

Capo's 

Music Store 

903 East Main 

Street 

276-608-4054 

caposmusicstore@

March, 2015 
(to fill unexpired 

(3-year term) 

February 1, 2017  

Yes 

 

mailto:communication@bartertheatre.com
mailto:communication@bartertheatre.com
mailto:swebb@swcenter.edu
mailto:swebb@swcenter.edu
mailto:jc@bvu.net
mailto:alikelyyarn@yahoo.com
mailto:alikelyyarn@yahoo.com
mailto:chamber@eva.org
mailto:joel.jerkins@yahoo.com
mailto:joel.jerkins@yahoo.com
mailto:caposmusicstore@gmail.com


Abingdon, VA  

24210 

gmail.com  term of Carson 

Jackson) 

Chase 

Mitchell 

William 

King 

Museum  

415 Academy 

Drive 

Abingdon, VA 

24210 

 

276-628-5005 

cmitchell@wkmus

eum.org 

February 7, 2011 (3-year term) 

February 1, 2017 

(Reappt 2/14) 

Yes 

 

 

 

 

Chris Lowe Martha 

Washington 

Inn 

150 W Main 

Street 

Abingdon, VA 

24210 

276-619-5260 

clowe@themartha.

com  

December 2016 (3-year term) 

December 2, 2019 

No 

Donna Price Holston 

Mtn. 

Artisans 

24722 Walden 

Road 

Abingdon, VA 

24210 

276-628-6234 

276-628-7721 

holstonmtarts@gm

ail.com 

May 2, 2011 (3-year term) 

May 1, 2017 

(Reappt 2/14) 

No 

Martha 

Keys 

Retired/ 

President of 

Historical 

Society of 

Washington 

Co. 

P O Box 2184 

Abingdon, VA  

24212 

276-628-2987 

martha.keys@com

cast.net 

 

November 4, 

2013 to fill 

unexpired term 

of Polly Mallory 

(5.2.14 expired) 

(3-year term) 

May 2, 2017 

Yes 

Becky Nave Virginia 

Housing and 

Community 

Developme

nt  

468 E Main 

Street Suite 

300B 

Abingdon VA 

24210 

276-492-2400 

becky.nave@dhcd.

virginia.gov 

 

November 7, 

2011 

(Replaced Todd 

Christiansen) 

Appointed 

November 2014 

(3-year term) 

November, 2017 

Yes 

Susan Yates Depot 

Artists 

Association 

(The Arts 

Depot) 

314 Depot 

Square 

Abingdon VA 

24210 

276-628-9191 

abingdonartsdepot

@eva.org 

 

December 5, 

2011 

(reappt Dec 

2014) 

(3 year term) 

December, 2017 

No 

Jennifer 

Montgomer

y 

Advance 

Abingdon 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:caposmusicstore@gmail.com
mailto:cmitchell@wkmuseum.org
mailto:cmitchell@wkmuseum.org
mailto:clowe@themartha.com
mailto:clowe@themartha.com
mailto:holstonmtarts@gmail.com
mailto:holstonmtarts@gmail.com
mailto:martha.keys@comcast.net
mailto:martha.keys@comcast.net
mailto:becky.nave@dhcd.virginia.gov
mailto:becky.nave@dhcd.virginia.gov
mailto:abingdonartsdepot@eva.org
mailto:abingdonartsdepot@eva.org


DATE COMMITTEES WILLING TO SERVE ON NAME

6/2/2015 Planning Commission Michael Weaver

6/4/2015 Planning Commission, or all others John Honeycutt

6/19/2015 Planning Commission Sue Ann Morris

6/24/2015 Planning Commission Mark Goodman

6/26/2015 Planning Commission Doug Ellis

7/22/2015 Sustain Abingdon Sherri Leab

7/30/2015 Sustain Abingdon Tom McMullen

7/31/2015 Sustain Abingdon Tim Wade

8/28/2015 HPRB James Bunn II

8/25/2015 HPRB Doug Covington

8/30/2015 Planning Commission Evie J. Hunt

9/1/2015 Planning Commission, BZA Kenny Shuman

9/1/2015 HPRB Franklin D. Brown

9/7/2015 Planning Commission Joe Levine

9/7/2015 Planning Commission, BBCA,BZA,EDA,HPRB,Sustain, Incubator Don Adams

9/9/2015 Tree Commission Chris Sullivan

9/14/2015 Sustain Abingdon Barbara Williamson

9/14/2015 BBCA, BZA,HPRB,Muster Grounds Planning Commission, Sustain Fred Johnson

9/14/2015 Sustain Abingdon Tracy Underwood

9/15/2015 Sustain Abingdon Thomas Keys

9/21/2015 Fairview Mark Hagy

10/13/2015 Redevelopment & Housing Mike Rush

10/23/2015 Sinking Springs CemeteryCommittee Michael Farris

11/21/2015 Fairview Michael Hagy

10/16/2015 Sinking Springs CemeteryCommittee Sigrid Phillips

5/5/2016 Planning Commissoin or HPRB Jayne Duehring

6/6/2016 HPRB Byrum Geisler

8/1/2016 EDA, HPRB, Sustain Abingdon, VA. Highlands Small Bus, Incub. Chase Mitchell

8/12/2016 HPRB, Muster Ground Justin Gobble

8/18/2016 EDA, Planning Commisson, TAC Kathleen Bundy

8/19/2016 Muster Grounds, Tree Commission, Incubator, EDA Tarn Rosenbaum

8/18/2016 Sustain Abingdon, BZA, HPRB, Planning Commission Bradley Conkle

8/26/2016 BZA John Kelly

8/29/2016 EDA, Planning Commission Shana Carrico

8/30/2016 EDA James Turner

9/5/2016 BZA,EDA,Tree Commission, VA. Highlands Small Bus. Incubator Edward Morgan

Willing to serve on any and all committies Rich Macbeth

11/3/2016 Sustain Abingdon Gina Patrick

11/17/2016 Sustain Abingdon, Tree commission Melissa Kalb

1/12/2017 EDA, HPRB, Planning, Sustain Abingdon, TAC, VHSBI Randy J. LaFollette

1/23/2017 HPRB Kristi Hartshorn

1/23/2017 HPRB Stephen C. Jett

1/23/2017 EDA, HPRB, Planning, Tree Commission Carr Blankenship, III

3/13/2017 TAC Adie Lee



ADDRESS

610 Colonial Road SW

466 Court Street Abingdon

278 Henderson Court

305 Bogey Drive

135 Longview Drive

16088 Majestic Dr., Bristol       Works in Abingdon

267 Whites Mill Road

14629 Branch Street

153 Valley Street NE

898 Fern Lane, Marion           Works  in Abingdon

22638 Remington Dr.              Works in Abingdon

164 West Valley Street

219 Buckingham Court

350 Green Spring Road

20080 Tall Oaks Drive 

172 Country Club Drive

499 Nicholas Street SE

164 Park Street

16316 Granda Pl.  

100 Trailview Drive

790 Falcon Drive

610 Colonial Road SW

15326 Greenway Rd Meadowview, Town Business 

322 Morningside Lane 

445 Circle Drive 

128 Crestview Drive

228 East Main Street

829 Taylor St., Bristol,TN Works at WKM

22175 Twin Oaks Rd.  E&H Student

19349 Old Jonesboro Road, Works at Barter

180 Crestview Drive

29085 Hart Run Drive 

215 Longview Drive Abingdon

368 Beverly Drive Abingdon

325 Morningside Lane, NE, Abingdon

259 Bradley Street, Abingdon

1139 Panorama Drive Abingdon

26481 Watauga Road Works at ASD

1151 Panorama Dr.

22464 Watauga Road

356 Augusta Drive

333 Court Street, NE

861 Barclay Drive

P O Box 867






	1WS - 1 Work session agenda
	1WS D - 2 EB Stanley TSA
	1WS D - 3 Revised by-laws 3-2017
	1WS E - 3 Letter from Delegate Delores L McQuinn
	1WS F - 1 abingdon main street agreement with the town
	A - 1 Regular Agenda
	D - 1 February 28 budget work session
	D - 2 March 1 2017 budget work session
	D - 3 March 6 2017 work session minutes
	D - 4 March 6, 2017 regular minutes
	D -5 March 20, 2017 Budget work session minutes
	F - 1 Notice of Public Hearing - Fairview
	F - 1a Fairview ad
	F - 1b March 27 ad
	F - 1c Picnic Shelter
	F - 1d GIS - Fairview
	H - 1 Council Packet - Bid Results - Paving - 2017
	Bid Results Council
	Bid Tabulation

	I - 2 abingdon main street agreement with the town
	I - 2a  AMS
	I - 3 Town Council Presentation
	I - 4 Symphony of the Mountains 2017 Gala
	I - 5 TAC Bylaws 9-6-16 - Suggested Revisions
	J - 1 Local Government Education Week
	L - 1 Board of Building Codes Appeals
	L - 2 Tourism Advisory Committee
	L - 2a Applications received 3-13-17
	L - 2b Adie Lee application for TAC

